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December 31, 2012

Office of the State Auditor and Inspector
Attn: Nancy Grantham

2300 N. Lincoln Blvd., Room 100
Oklahoma City, OK 73105

In accordance with O.S. Title 74 Section 212A. A.2 and O.S. Title 11, Section 17-105.1, please find
attached the following for the reporting entity of the City of Mustang for the year ended June 30,
2012:

o The audited financial statements, with the accompanying auditor’s reports thereon;

* Annual Survey of City and Town Finances (SA&I Form 2643), with the accompanying
accountants compilation report thereon; and

The $100.00 filing fee has been paid via your website.

The entities included in the City of Mustang reporting entity are the following:
The City of Mustang;

The Mustang Improvement Authority;

The Mustang Economic Development Authority; and
The Mustang Special Project Authority (Inactive)

Should you need any additional information or have any questions regarding this filing, please
contact me at 405-348-0615.

Sincerely,

.
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Andy Cror(er, CPA

Partner

309 N. Bryant Ave. « Edmond, OK 73034 < 405.348.0615 < Fax 405.348.0931 + www.jmacpas.com
Member of AICPA and OSCPA
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376-4521 1501 N. Mustang Road, Mustang, Oklahoma 73064

December 31, 2012

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and
Citizens of the City of Mustang, Oklahoma

Dear Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Mustang, Oklahoma:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Mustang, Oklahoma for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This report is submitted in accordance
with statutes of the State of Oklahoma and the Charter of the City of Mustang, Oklahoma, which
require that audited financial statements be prepared within six months of the end of the fiscal year.
This report reflects our intent to provide an organized, comprehensive, and informative presentation
of the financial statements. We believe the information is accurate in all material aspects and that all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an adequate understanding of the City’s financial
affairs have been included.

It is the responsibility of Management of the City to prepare the CAFR. Management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report, based
upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.
Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any

material misstatements.

John M. Arledge and Associates, P.C., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified
(“clean™) opinions on the City of Mustang, Oklahoma’s, financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2012. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of

this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and provides a namrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this letter and should be read in conjunction.
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Profile of the Government

The City of Mustang is located in Canadian County in central Oklahoma approximately 15
minutes west of downtown Oklahoma City and shares all of its boundaries with Oklahoma City.
Mustang, incorporated in October 1969, covers an area of twelve (12) square miles and serves a
population of approximately 18,002.

Oklahoma state statutes limit the city in its ability to levy a property tax. Property taxes must be
approved by the voters and are limited to the repayment of general obligation debt and court
assessed judgment principal and interest. With voter approval the city can levy a sales tax to
fund operations.

The City of Mustang has adopted a charter and operates under a Council-Manager form of
government. The legislative body of the city consists of one council member elected from each
of six wards, and the mayor who is elected at large. The council members serve as the Board of
Trustees for the Mustang Improvement Authority; the mayor serves as chairman of the board.
The Mayor and Council appoint the City Manager who is the chief executive officer of the city.
Responsibility for the day-to-day operations of the city rests with the City Manager.

The City of Mustang provides services necessary for the health and well-being of its citizens,
including police and fire protection, streets and other infrastructure, culture and recreation,
public improvements, and general administrative services. The Mustang Improvement Authority,
a blended component unit, provides water, sewer and sanitation services. For financial reporting
purposes, the City is defined as including all funds, agencies, boards, commissions and
authorities over which the City Council has financial accountability; therefore, the activities of
the Mustang Improvement Authority, the Mustang Special Projects Authority and the Mustang
Economic Development Authority are included in the reporting entity.

The City of Mustang maintains privatization contracts with two companies for the operations of
animal control, streets, parks, water, sewer, and sanitation services.

The City Council is required by state statute to adopt a budget no later than seven days prior to the
first day of the fiscal year, July 1. The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of
Mustang’s financial planning and control. All funds of the city with revenues and expenditures are
required to have annual budgets, except funds of public trusts or authorities. The budget is prepared
by fund by department. The City Manager may authorize transfers between departments without
City Council approval. Supplemental appropriations require City Council approval and must be
filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector. Public trust or authorities are required to
prepare an annual budget, there are no other requirements related to monitoring.

Local Economy

All types of construction were trending upward in 2012! New commercial projects receiving
building permits included Whataburger~, Billy Sims’ Barbequew, Papa Murphy’s Pizza~, Cherry
Berry Frozen Yogurt~ and Taco Bell~. In addition to these eateries, we also gained Presidential
Boutique and LaCage clothing stores. Two medical clinics also opened in the past year and two



more broke ground.

By design, there are very few true industrial sites in our community. One of the only areas set
aside specifically for such activity is the Cedar Springs Industrial Park. Sheppard & Sons
Construction and S&S Foods became the first companies to break ground in the park, which had
set dormant since its inception in 2005.

More good news occurred when we received plats for the third phases of Hunter’s Hill and Sara
Homestead additions. City council also approved plans for Wild Horse Park, a unique two-
family residential subdivision being constructed near Mustang's commercial corridor. More new
lots should usher in additional homes, more residents, and greater opportunities to increase our
sales tax base.

By the year’s end, we expect to see 6 new two-family dwellings and approximately 60 new
homes across our jurisdiction. This is a far cry from the growth seen in 2006, but the average
size and evaluation of the homes currently under construction appears to be much greater than
that before.

Unemployment remains very low and the Mustang Public Schools continues to be our largest
employer with a total of 714 individuals working in City Limits and another 535 active
elsewhere. Wal-Mart Stores was the largest private-sector employer with Tate Publishing in
third place. Located on the southeastern side of the community, Industrial Gasket Co. employed
30 and still remained one of Canadian County’s only Free Trade Zones. By all accounts,
Mustang’s economy remained strong and diversified.

Mustang’s largest employers included:

Mustang Public Schools 714 (Total number employed in City Limits)

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 315

Tate Publishing 220

City of Mustang 135 (Includes employees of Severn-Trent and an estimation of Silver
Star employees Construction assigned to service our account)

Lowe’s Home Improvement Stores 112

Accurate Drilling Service 67

All American Bank 49

Coldwell Banker SELECT Realty 45

Larry’s New Homeland 45

Security Solutions 35

Industrial Gasket 30

Wilson Ophthalmic Corp 18

In 2010, Money magazine ranked Canadian Count as the one of the nation’s top 25 counties for
new job growth. Undoubtedly, this increase was largely fueled by the oil and gas sector.
However, a large number of Mustang residents were serving their country working at the Federal
Aeronautical Administration’s Will Rogers World Airport training campus. Others worked for
the State of Oklahoma, Canadian County, and city government, Public sector jobs helped
stabilize the local economy and keep unemployment at less than 5%.



Because of our revenue structure, developing the retail and hospitality industries remained a top
priority for city leaders. Mustang continued to focus on preserving existing “mom and pop”
storefronts while pursuing national “big box” retailers. Each time a business closed there was
usually another waiting in the wings to take its place.

Visitors continued to stream into Wild Horse Park for recreational and cultural activities, which
greatly increased the need to develop our hospitality industry. As result, the City placed a
heightened importance to recruit restaurants and hotels. At the time of this report we have had
several hotels seriously interesting in developing a new location in Mustang.

During the past ten years, the government as a whole has experienced a significant increase in
operational cost due to growth and expanded services. Overall, public safety and culture and
recreation have seen the most significant increases in operational cost. Public safety’s increase is
due to growth in both fire and police personnel, converting the fire department to a twenty-four
hour department, and a trend in the metropolitan area of public safety salaries growing at a much
faster rate than those of other categories of the public-sector. The growth in culture and
recreation relates to expanded facilities and services. The city constructed and began operating a
softball complex, recreation and athletic facility, aquatic center, and expanded all areas of
programming related to culture and recreation.

Long-term financial planning

City Council has not formally adopted a policy concerning minimum fund balance in the general
fund. Council has verbally expressed a desire to maintain reserves in the two major operating
funds (i.e. the General Fund and the Mustang Improvement Authority) at a combined total of ten
to fifteen percent of the annual budget on a budgetary basis.

Relevant financial policies

In an attempt to designate a permanent source for infrastructure financing, the City Council
approved a resolution designating one-percent of sales tax collections over $500,000 in a single
month for infrastructure. The one-percent is calculated after deducting restricted sales tax
amounts,

Major initiatives

Management addressed the need to expand and upgrade the wastewater treatment plant to handle
the significant growth that we have had. The sewer plant has now increased the processing
capacity from 1.057megd to 2.0 mgd The City/MIA received financing of a low interest loan
through the Oklahoma Water Resources Board. The wastewater treatment plant expansion was
completed in October 2010.

The City issued $3,600,000 Combined Purpose General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, dated
June 1, 2012 for the purpose of constructing and equipping a youth baseball complex to be
located in Wild Horse Park ($1,550,000) and to expand the Town Center Building ($2,050,000).



Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Mustang for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This was the
eighteenth consecutive year that the City of Mustang has achieved this prestigious award, In order
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The preparation of this report is a combined effort of the staff of the finance and administrative
departments of the City. We wish to express our appreciation to all members of the City who
assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. In addition, we express our appreciation to
the Mustang Chamber of Commerce and the Management Team who assisted in the gathering of
economic trend information for this report. In addition, our thanks to the Mayor and City Council
for their leadership and support in strengthening and improving the fiscal policies of the City of
Mustang.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Rutledge
City Manager
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Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Mustang
Oklahoma

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2011

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the Uniled States and Canada to
govermnment units and public elployee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounling
and financial reporting,
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‘| Arledge

& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Mustang, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Mustang, Oklahoma (the "City"} as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial staternents based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evalvating the overall financial statement
presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Mustang, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 14, 2012,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the pension plan and other post-
employment benefits funding schedules, as listed in the Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accented in the United States of America, which consisted

#
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of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, other supplemental
information, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The other supplemental information, as listed in the Table of
Contents, is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

OAA/Z&/C;! 5’ W’ P

Edmond, Oklahoma
December 14, 2012



City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

Management of the City of Mustang provides this discussion and analysis of the City of Mustang’s
financial performance as an overview of the city’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal at
the front of this report and the city’s financial statements, which follow.

Financial Highlights

* Total net assets of the city increased by $1,533,826 or 3.7% from the prior year. This
increase is largely due to utility revenues exceeding expenses.

* The city’s governmental activities net assets increased by $459,570 or 1.5% due mainly to an
increase in tax revenues.

* Net assets of the business-type activities increased by $1,074,256 or 11.3% due to revenues
exceeding expense in the water, wastewater and sanitation functions. In the business-type
activities, charges for services revenues and expenses experienced a 6.7% increase and 3.4%
increase, respectively.

* The City issued $3,600,000 of General Obligation bonds for the construction of a baseball
facility and for expansion of the Library and Town Center banquet facility. The bonds will
be repaid with a property tax.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the city’s basic financial statements.
The city’s basic financial statements include (or are comprised of) three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains additional required supplementary information (pension information and budgetary
schedules) and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the city’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
business. The statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting
takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when the cash is received
or paid. The government-wide financial statements include the following:

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the city’s assets and [iabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
nise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses reported
in this statement for some items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (i.e. uncollected
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the city that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the city include administrative, culture and recreation, public
safety, community development, and streets. The business-type activities of the city include three
enterprise activities: the water system, the sanitary sewer system, and the sanitation system.
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

The government-wide financial statements include not only the city and the Mustang Improvement
Authority (a blended component unit) which comprise the primary government, but also the Mustang
Economic Development Authority (MEDA). This discretely presented component unit operates similar to
private sector business, but has financial accountability to the city. The financial information for the
component unit is reporied separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and
analysis on pages 24-25 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The city, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the city can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a governments’” near-term
financing requirements. This approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govemment’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund staternent of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the 2012 G.O. Bond Project — Ballfield Fund, and the
2012 G.0O. Bond Project — Town Center Fund, which are considered to be a major funds. The G.O. Bond
Project Funds are major capital project funds. Data from the other five nonmajor governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found immediately following the government-wide
statements on pages 26-29.

Proprietary funds. These funds are used to report activities that operate like those of commercial
enterprises. Because these funds charge fees for services provided to outside customers, they are known
as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. Like the government-wide financial statements, proprietary
fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting. There is no reconciliation needed between
the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

statements. The city uses one enterprise fund to account for the operations of its water, sanitary sewer,
and sanitation services. This fund is considered a major proprietary fund for presentation purposes. The
basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found immediately following the governmental fund
financial statements on pages 30-32.

Component Unit Financial Statements. As mentioned above, these are operations for which the city has
financial accountability but they have certain independent qualities as well, and they operate similar to
business-type activities. The government-wide financial statements present information for the
component unit in a single column of the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found immediately following the fund financial statements, beginning on
page 33.

Required Supplementary Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the city’s pension
plan and the general fund budget. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general
fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. Required supplementary information can be found
immediately following the notes to the financial statements beginning on page 55.

Other Supplementary Information. The combining statements referred to earlier and budgetary
comparisons for general fund accounts and nonmajor governmental funds are presented following the
required supplementary information on page 63.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
Net assets are the difference between total assets and total liabilities and are an indicator of the current
fiscal health of the city. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the city’s combined net assets increased by
$1.5 million. The following table provides a summary of the city’s net assets:

(Table 1 - in miilions)

Total % Change

Gowernmental Activitles Business Type Activitics Total
2012 2011 2012 2t 2012 2011 2011-2032
Current and other assels $114 $6.8 $8.1 579 $19.5 $14.7 33%
Capital assels 256 266 251 260 507 526 4%
Total assels 2140 334 232 138 70,2 673 4%
Long-tenndebl outstanding 42 06 222 242 264 243 6%
Other liabilities 1Ll L6 04 03 15 L9 -21%
Total linbilities 5 22 22.6 24.5 219 6.7 4%
Nel Assels
Invested in capital assets,
Net of related debl {(see Note 3.G) 254 26.3 129 15.4 25.3 290 -13%
Restricted 52 11 33 ER| 83 42 98%
Unrestricted Ll 18 5.6 @en 81 24 18%
Tolnl nel assets 5317 $312 $10.6 $9.4 §423 $40.6 4.2%
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

The above numbers reflect an increase of 1.5% for governmental activities net assets and an increase of
approximately 11.3% for business-type activities net assets.  The City’s overall financial position
improved during fiscal year 2012.

The City’s governmental activities net assets increased by $459,570. The primary reason for the increase
was due to an increase in fax revenues.

The net assets of our business type activities increased by $1,074,256 or 11.3%. The primary reason for
the increase was due to operational revenues exceeding expenses.

The foliowing table provides a summary of the City’s changes in net assets:
Summary of Changes in Net Assets

Table 2
(in millions)

Governmental % Ine. Business Type % In¢, Total %
Activilies (Dec.) Activities (Dec.) Total Change
2z 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2011-2003
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services 513 $12 8% 5§70 $66 &  S83  $78 6%
Operating Grants and contributions 06 0.6 - - - - 0.6 0.6 -
Capital Grants and contributions 0.1 0.3 -67% - - - 0.3 0.3 -67%
General Revenues
Sales and use laxes 8.1 7.7 5% - - - 8.1 77 5%
Properly laxes 0.2 02 “ - - - 02 0.2 -
Other laxes 07 07 - - - - 0.7 07 -
Other 04 0.3 3% 0.1 - 100% 05 (.3 67%
Total revenues 114 11.0 4% 7.1 6.6 8% 185 17.6 5%
Expenses:
Adminisiration 30 31 -3% - - - 0 il -3%
Culiure and recreation 23 2.2 5% - - - 23 22 5%
Comnmunity development 0.5 0.4 25% - - - 0.5 04 25%
Public safety 4.8 45 % - - - 4.8 45 b
Streets 0.7 0.6 17% - - - 0.7 0.6 1%
Water . . - 23 22 5% 23 2.2 5%
Wastewaler - - - 12 12 % 12 1.2 )
Samitation - - - 1.0 1.0 - 10 1.0 -
Ambulance - - - 0.2 0.1 100% 02 0.1 100%
Interes| on gov. activities - - - 09 0.8 13% 0.9 0.8 13%
Total expenses 113 10.8 5% 5.6 53 6% 16.9 16.1 5%
Increase in net assels
Before trans{ers 0.1 0.2 -50% 13 1.3 15% 1.6 1.5 %
Trans{ers 0.4 04 - 0.4) 04 %% - - -
Change In net assets 505  §0.6 -50% $1.1 509 15% 516 51.5 7%

The results of 2012 were shaped largely by the slight rebound in the local economy. Total net assets
increased by 3.7% or $1,533,826. Significant changes were related to:

Governmental Activities:

Capital grants and contributions showed a 67% decrease due to a reduction in funding from the
Oklahoma Department of Transportation.
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Cily of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

Other revenues increased 33% due to insurance reimbursements for storm damage.
Business-type Activities:

Charges for services showed a 6% increase as due to a rate adjustment in the prior year that was
in effect for the full year.

Water expense increased 5% related 1o an increase in the public works operation contract.

Governmental Activities:

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with
revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The
reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the
City’s taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is
self-financing through fees and grants. Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City’s seven largest
programs—police, economic development, fire, street, golf, general government, and community
development—as well as each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities).
The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of these
functions.

Governmental Activities
Table 3
(in Thousands)

Totel Cost Nelt Cost
ol Services % of Services %
2012 2011 2012 2011
Adminsitration $3,036 $3,107 -2% (33,036) ($3,10M 2%
Culiure and Recreation 2,329 2,181 7% (1,402) (1,365) %
Community Development 441 407 8% (265) (252) 5%
Public Safety 4,750 4,451 7% {4,073) {3.7123) %%
Strects and Dramage 731 645 13% (580} (224) 1594
Interest on long-tenn debi 14 19 -26% (14) {19 -26%
$11,301 $10,810 5% (£9.370) ($8,650) 8%

Overall, the city’s governmental activities” total costs increased 5% over last year and net costs increased
by 8%. The explanations on the previous page account for the majority of increases in total costs of
services and decrease in net cost of services in the governmental activities. The most significant item is
the decrease in contributed capital and capital grants related to streets.

Business-type Activities:

Overall, total cost of services for the city’s business-type activities increased 3% from last year. The
explanations for the major components of the increases are noted on the previous page. The net revenues
reported an increase which was mainly caused by the rate increase in all areas in the previous year.
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities

Table 4
(in Thousands)
Total Cost Net Cost
of Services % of Services %
2012 2011 2012 2011
Waler $2,301 $2.213 4% 3635 5524 21%
Waslewater 1,170 1,216 4% 490 345 42%
Solid Waste 1,039 1,022 2% 1,131 1,053 %
Ambulance 201 146 38% 47 53 -11%
Interes| on govemmental long-term debt 8§70 800 ) (870 (800) Ph
$5,581 £5,397 3% $1,433 $1,175 22%

The City’s Funds

The General Fund is the city’s primary operating fund and the source of day-to-day operations. The
general fund is significantly reliant on sales tax revenues for operations. The fund balance increased by
$198,997 from the prior year. This increase is attributed to a transfer from the MIA to assist with
operations and an increase in tax revenues.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the general fund budgel to supplement for grants,
contributions, and unexpected expenditures. The revised budget was an increase of $470,192. General
Fund actual expenditures were below budget by $720,989, due to most departments coming in below
estimates. Actual revenues were less than budgeted by $57,900 because transfers in were less than
anticipated.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At the end of June 30, 2012, the city had $50.6 million invested in capital assets including police and fire
equipment, buildings, parks, streets and drainage systems, and water and sewer infrastructure.
Additions to capital assets included infrastructure improverments and miscellaneous equipment purchases.
Information on capital assets is located in Note 3.D.

Capital Assets
Table §
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
(in millions)

Total %
Governmental Activities Business-lype Activities Totals Change
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Non-Depreciable Assets
Land 508 308 $0.5 30.5 $1.3 513 0%
Construclion-in-progress 0.5 04 0.0 0.0 0.5 04  25%
Depreciable Assers
Buildings 11.5 120 9.0 03 20.5 213 4%
Inprovements & Gther 0.2 02 - - 02 02 0%
Equipment 28 3l 02 0.1 30 32 6%
Infrastructure 9.7 10.1 154 16.1 251 262 4%
Totals 255 u268 8251 260 S506 526 4%
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Management Discussion & Analysis
June 30, 2012

Debt Administration

At year-end, the city had $26,831,169 in outstanding notes, judgments, bonds and compensated absences.
Additional debt information can be found in note 3.E.

These debts are further detailed below as follows:

Outstanding Debt
Table 6
(in millions)
Govwernmental Business-type Total %
Actlvities Activities Totals Change
Wz 20 w1z 21 Wiz 2011
General Obligation Bond $ 36 % 0.3 5 -8 - 5 36 % 0.3 1100%
Capital lease obligatioan 02 0.1 - . 0.2 0.1 100%
Noles Payable - o 3.7 4.0 3.7 4.0 -B%
Revenue Bonds - - 19.1 20,9 19.1 209 -9%
Accrued Compensation 0.3 0.2 - - 0.3 0.2 50%
Totals 84.1 50.6 522.8 $24.9 $26.9 §$25.5 5%

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budge!

The City of Mustang expects to see a small growth in the economy in the next fiscal year due to more
inquiries from businesses looking to build or relocate in the city. The city anticipates a conservative
sales tax increase for the next fiscal year. Management will continue to strive for fiscal conservativeness
while developing plans to expand the systems and operations needed to meet citizens’ needs.

The fiscal year 2012-2013 government—wide budget of $51.9 million is an increase of .04% over the prior
year.

The City issued $3,600,000 Combined Purpose General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, dated June 1,
2012 for the purpose of constructing and equipping a youth baseball complex to be located in Wild Horse
Park ($1,550,000) and to expand the Town Center Building ($2,050,000).

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of Mustang’s finances and to show the city’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Director,
City of Mustang, 1501 N. Mustang Road, Mustang, OK 73064 or phone (405) 376-4521.

Respectfully Submiited,

Mike Rutledge
City Manager
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 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by
the GASB. The sets of statements include:
*  Govemment-wide financial statements
*  Fund Financial Statements:
a Governmental Funds

O Proprietary (enterprise) fund

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is
essential to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements,
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ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash and cash equivalenls

Investmenls

Restricled - cash and cash equivalents
Restricled - invesimenls

Accounts Receivable, nel

Due lrom Other Governmenls

Inlernal Balances

Other Receivables

Inventory
Noles Receivable

Total Current Assels

Noncurrent Assets:

Noles Receivable

City of Mustang
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Compaonent Unit

Mustang Economic

Capilal Assels

Land and construction in progress
Depreciable buildings, property, and

equipment, nel

Unamortized bond issue cosl

Tolal Noncurrent Assets

Tolal Assels

LIABILITIES

Current Llabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued inlerest payable
Accrued liabililies

Claims payable

Amounts held in escrow
Deposits subject lo refund
Currenl portion of long-lerm obligations
Tolal Currenl Liabililies
Noncurrent Liabilitles:
Other posl employment benefit obligalion
Nancurrent parlicn of long-term obligations

Total Noncurrenl Liabililies

Tolal Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invesled in capilal assels, nel of relaled debt
{see nole 3.G. concerning lotal column)

Restricted by:

Enabling legislation
Exlernal contracls
Unrestricled (see nole 3.G.}
Tolal nel assels

Governmental Businaess-type Development
Actlvitles Actlvitles Total Authority

3 5,449,622 § 1,425,148 6,874,770 3471
841,399 1,410,091 2,251,480 -
3,557,002 2,527,339 6,084,341 -
- 1,036,408 1,036,408 -
183,522 1,027,106 1,210,628 -
1,122,552 8,142 1,130,694 -
{1.464) 1,464 - -
175,966 - 175,966 -
24,561 24,797 48,358 -
. o - 191,744
11,353,160 7,460,495 18,813,655 194,915
- - - 169,637
1,335,005 481,776 1,816,871 -
24,241,353 24,610,297 48,851,570 -
54,625 637,976 692,601 -
25,631,073 25,729,969 51,361.042 169,637
3 36,984,233 3 33.190.464 70,174,697 364,552
3 752,297 3 261,725 1,014,022 -
10,099 135,201 145,300 -
214,646 - 214,646 -
65,711 - 65,711 -
- 307,060 307,060 -
129,367 2,249,500 2,378,867 191,744
1,172,120 2,953,486 4,125,606 191,744
210,072 - 210,072 -
3,892,008 19,667,366 23,579,374 169,637
4,102,080 19,687,366 23,789,446 169,637
5,274,200 22,640,852 27,915,052 361,381
25,352,936 12,922,913 25,305,849 -
86,875 - 86,875 -
5,074,727 3,121,562 8,196,289 -
1,195,495 {5,494,863) 8,670,632 3,171
3 31,710,033 $ 10,548,612 42,259,645 3.171

See accompanying noles lo the basic financial stalements
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City of Mustang

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 9,880,845

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated _
depreciation of $40,770,310 25,676,448

Certain other long-term assets are not available to pay current fund liabilities
and therefare, are deferred in the funds:

Court fines receivable 125,040
Receivable from other governments 9,077
134,117

Certain assets are not reporied in the funds on the current financial
resources measurement focus however, in the government-wide financial
statements are reported due to the use of the economic resources focus:
Unamortized bond issue costs 54,625

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of

certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal

service funds are included in governmental-activities in the statement of net

assts. 305,544

Certain liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources
and therefore, are not reported in the funds:

General obligation bonds payable (3,600,000)
Accrued compensaled absences {252,793)
Capital leases payable {168,582)
Accrued interest payable {10,099)
Other postemployment benefits {210,072)
(4,241,546)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets $ 31,710,033

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Mustang

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds;

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays and bond issue costs as
expenditures while governmental activities report depreciation and
amortization expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the
assets:

Capital asset purchases capitalized

Bond issue costs Amortized

Amortization of issue cost

Depreciation expense

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Deferred revenue

Debt proceeds provide curreni financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds; but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets:

Bond proceeds received

Capital lease proceeds

General obligation bond principal payments

Capital lease principal payments

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Accrued interest

Accrued compensated absences

Other postemployment benefits

Internal service fund activity is reported as a proprietary fund in the fund
financial statements, but certain net revenues are reported in governmental
activities on the Statement of Activilies

Total change in net assets for internal service funds

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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4,847,229

496,522
54,930

(5,926)

(1,568,599)

(1,023,073)

12,291

(3,600,000)

(143,219)
240,000
106,059

(3,397,160)

(4,961)
(22,472)
(53,104)

(80,537)

100,821

459,571




City of Mustang

Statement of Net Assets
Proprletary Funds
June 30, 2012
Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities
Mustang
Improvement Internal Service
Authority Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 1,425,148 3 221,260
Reslricted cash and cash equivalents 2,527,339 -
Inveslmenls 1,410,091 298,930
Restricted investmentis 1,036,408 -
Accounts receivable, nel 1,005,187 -
Due from olher funds 1,464 -
Due from other governmenils 8,142 -
Olher receivable 21,919 -
Inventory 24,797 -
Total current assets 7,460,495 520,190
Non-current assets:
Land and construction in progress 481,776 -
Olher capital assels, net 24,610,217 -
Unamortized bond issue costs 637,976 -
Tolal non-currenl assels 25,729,969 -
Total assets 33,190,464 520,190
LIABILITIES
Currenl Liabilities:
Accounls payable 261,725 -
Claims payable - 214,646
Accrued interest payable 135,201 -
Refundable deposits 31,498 -
Notes payable 329,500 -
Revenue bonds payable 1,920,000 -
Total current liabilities 2,677,924 214,646
Non-current liabililies:
Deposits subject to refund 275,562 -
Revenue bonds payable, nel 16,277,073 -
Notes payable 3,410,293 -
Total non-current liabilities 19,062,928 -
Total liabilities 22,640,852 214,646
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital asseis, net of related debt 12,922,913 -
Resfricted for debl service 3,121,562 -
Unrestricted (5,494,863) 305,544
Tolal net assets $ 10,549,612 $ 305,544

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stalements
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City of Mustang

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

REVENUES

Charges for services:
Water charges
Sewer charges
Installations and connections
Penalties
Sanitation charges
Ambulance assessment
Sewer impact fees
Workers compensation fees
Cther

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of goods sold
Operations and maintenance
Claims expense
Depreciation expense
Amoriization expense

Total Operaling Expenses

Operating income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income
Miscellaneous

Interest expense and fiscal charges

Total non-operating revenue (expenses}

Net income before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning (restated)

Total net assets - ending

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Governmental
Enterprise Fund Activities
Mustang .
Improvement Internal Service
Authority Fund

$ 2,858,999 3 -
1,563,687 -
42,965 -
123,018 -
2,125,281 -
248,039 -
44275 -
- 122,332
47,380 72
7.053,644 122,404
521,013 -
2,845,678 32,620

- {7.441)

952,358 -
76,904 -
4,395,953 25179
2,657,691 97,225
28,846 3,596
(570) -
(1,185,499) -
{1,157,223) 3,596
1,500,468 100,821
7,798,674 -
{8,224,886) -
1,074,256 100,821
9,475,356 204,723
$ 10,549,612 $ 305,544

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statement Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recepts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments Lo claimants
Receipts of cuslomer meter deposiis
Customer meter deposus refunded or applied
Paymens to other funds
Receipls from other funds
Net Cash Provided by (Used 10} Operating Acuviites

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AD RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers from other funds

Trans/ers lo other funds

Principal paid on non-capital debt

Interest and fiscal agent [ees paid on non-capital debt

Nei Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapulal ang Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capilal assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest and fiscal agent fees pasd on capital deby
Net Cash Provided by (Used 1) Capual and Relaled Funancing Activines

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale o ovestments
Interest and dividends

Net Cash Provided by Invesung Acuvilies
Nel Inerease in Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Belances - beginning el the year
Balances - end of the year

Reconclliation 1o Siniement of Net Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricled cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents

Reconcillatlon of operating lncome (loss) 10 ne cash provided
by aperating activities:
Operating income
Adjusiments to reconcile operaling incame te nel cash provided
(used) by operating activiies:
Deprecialion expense
Amonlizauon expense
COrher non opereting revenues
Change in assets and liabilines:
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Other recenable
Accounts paysbles
Claims payables
Customner meter deposits payable
Due 10 other funds

Net Cash Provided by Operating Acuvities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Governments)
Activitles -
MIA Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Fund
56,936,807 3122404
(3,279,191) (32,620)
- {137,907}
62,400 -
(59,474) -
(45,8%9) .
5417 -
3,620,061 (48,123)
7,798,674 -
(8,224,886) 5
(1,015,000) -
(644,712) -
(2.085,924) -
(15,489) .
(1,083,600) .
(449.411) -
(1,548,500) -
87,993 95,509
29,860 3,775
117,853 99,284
103,490 51,181
3,848,997 170,099
$3,952,487 $221,260
$1,425,148 5221260
$2,527,339 o
$3,952,487 $221,260
52,657,601 $97,225
652,358 -
76,5904 a
(570) .
(94,348) -
5417 s
(21919 -
87,500 o
5 (145,348)
2,926 -
(45,898) -
$3,620,061 (548,123)




City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City’s accounting and financial reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP). Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) includes all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. In accordance with GASB Statement Nos. 20
and 34, for its governmental and business-lype activities, enterprise funds and similar discretely presented
component units the City has elected to apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements,
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30,
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB
prevails.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant account principles and practices of Mustang are
discussed in subsequent sections of this Note.

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
The city’s financial reporting entity is comprised of the following;

Primary Government: City of Mustang

Component Units: Mustang Improvement Authority
Mustang Economic Development Authority
Mustang Special Project Authority, inactive

In determining the financial reporting entity, the city complies with the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and includes all component units of which the
city is fiscally accountable.

Each of these component units is a Public Trust established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State Statutes. Public
Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authorities are generally created to finance City services through
issvance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the City Council to delegate certain
functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Authority. The Authorities generally retain title to assets that are
acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated resources. In addition, the city has leased
certain existing assets at the creation of the Authorities to the Trustees on a long-term basis. The city, as beneficiary
of the Public Trusts, receives litle to any residual assets when a Public Trust is dissolved.

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described above and whose
governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City Council or the component unit provides services
entirely to the city. These component units’ funds are blended into those of the city’s by appropriate fund category
to comprise the primary government presentation.

The component units that are blended into the primary governments’ fund categories are presented below:

Mustang Improvement Authority - Created June 4, 1963, to finance, develop and operate the water, sewer, and solid
waste activities. The current City Council serves as entire governing body (Trustees). Any issuances of debt would
require a two-thirds approval of the City Council. The MIA is reported as an enterprise fund within the primary
govermnment presentation.

Mustang Special Project duthority - Created July 7, 1998 to provide funds for the furthering and authorized or
proper functions of the municipality, including but not limited to the furnishing and supplying of economic
development services and facilities. The current City Council serves as entire governing body. Any issuance of
debt would require a two-thirds approval of the City Council. The trust is currently inactive.
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described
above but do not meet the criteria for blending. The component unit that is discretely presented in the city’s report
is presented below: g

Mustang Economic_Development Authority (MEDA) was created Febrvary 23, 1982, to promote and encourage
development of industry and commerce and other related activities on behalf of the city. Trustees are appointed by
the City Council and may be removed at will by the City Council. The city assumes no responsibility for the
Authority's day-to-day operations and the Authority's Trustees are responsible for management contracts. In
addition, the city has no obligation for the debt of the Authority.

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the city as a whole. They include
all financial activities of the reporting entity. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double reporting of
transactions involving intemal activities. Individual funds are not displayed in these statements. Instead, the
statements distinguish between govemmental and business-type activities. Govermnmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, inlergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between the expenses and program revenues directly associated
with the different governmental functions and business-type activities to arrive at the net revenue or expense of the
function or activity prior 1o the use of taxes and other general revenues. Program revenues include (1) fees, fines,
and services charges generated by the program or activily, (2) operating grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational requirements of the program or activity, and (3) capital grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the capital requirements of the program or aclivity and include assets donated by developers.
These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue
sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be separate
accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Separate financial statements are presented
for the two major fund categories: govemnmental and proprietary. The city presently has no fiduciary funds. An
emphasis of the fund financial statements is placed on major governmental and enterprise funds. A fund is
considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the city or meets the following criteria:

1. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type,
and

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or

enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise
funds combined.

3. A fund not meeting the criteria of (a) and (b), however management has elected to report the fund as
a major fund due to its significance to users of the financial statements.

FUND TYPES AND MAJOR FUNDS:

All remaining governmental and enterprise funds not meeting the above criteria are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds. The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the city and always classified as a major fund. It is used to
account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds. The
following intemal activily accounis are combined with the general fund for repon purposes only: Health
Reimbursement Account, General Reserve Account, and Library Account.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specified revenue sources that are restricted or
committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than capital projects or debt service. The reporting entity
includes the following special revenue funds: Police Traffic Enforcement, Park Improvement, and the Street
Improvement Fund. None are considered major funds.

Debt Service Fund

The City Debt Service Fund is used to account for ad-valorem taxes levied by the city for use in retiring general
obligation bonds, court-assessed judgments, and their related interest and fiscal agent fees. In State law, this fund is
referred to as the Sinking Fund. This fund is not considered a major fund.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources (hat are restricted, commitied or
assigned to expenditures for capital outlay, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities or other
capital assets. The reporting entity includes three capital project funds, the city Capital Improvement Fund, the 2012
General Obligation Bond Project — Ball Field Fund and the 2012 General Obligation Bond Project — Town Center
Fund, The two 2012 General Obligation Bond Project Funds are considered major.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Proprietary funds include both enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to account for
business-like activities provided to the general public. Internal service funds are used to account for business-like
activities provided and charged 10 other funds or entities within the reporting entity. These activities are financed
primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar 1o
the private sector. The reporting entity includes the Mustang Improvement Authority enterprise fund. This fund
accounts for activities of the public trust in providing water, wastewater, and sanitation to the public and is
considered a major fund. The reporting entity includes one internal service fund, the Worker’s Compensation Fund,
used to account for self-insured worker’s compensaticn claims.

COMPONENT UNIT

The discretely presented component unit is a separate legal entity whose governing body (in majority) is appointed
by the Mayor or City Council, but whose governing body is not substantially the same as the City Council nor is it
an entity established to provide services primarily to the primary government. Since this component unit is not as
closely associated with the city as is a blended component unit, it is reported in a discretely presented column on the
government-wide financial statements labeled “Component Units.” The reporting entity includes the Mustang
Economic Development Authority, a discretely presented component unit.

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe how transactions are recorded within the financial statements. Basis
of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund statements report using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are
the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cosl recovery), financial position and cash flows.
All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, financial or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are
reported. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the “current financial resources” measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the current financial resources focus, only current financial assets and
liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uvses of
available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of
available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when “measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or being able 1o reasonably
estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilities. The city considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal
year. Sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, hotel/motel taxes, court fines and interest are considered susceptible to
accrual Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
general obligation bond principal and interest which are recorded when due.

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes all demand, savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Revenue bond account investments in money markel
accounts are also considered cash equivalents and carried at cost.

Investments

Investments consist of non-negotiable certificates of deposit whose original maturity term exceeds three months and
investments in U.S. Government Securities. All non-negotiable certificates of deposit are carried at cost.
Investments in U.S. Government Securities are carried at fair value. The city places no limit on the amount it may
invest in any one issuer. The city has not adopted a formal deposit and investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates other than
restrictions set forth in state statutes.

Receivables

Material receivable in the governmental fund types and the governmental activities include revenue accruals such as
sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both
measurable and available. These are reported as Due From Other Governments. Non-exchange transactions
collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements.  Allowances for uncollectible accounts
receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Business-type activities and the proprietary type fund consist of revenues eamned al year-end and not yel received.
Billed and unbilled utility accounts receivable comprise the majority of these receivables. Allowances for

uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

Component unit notes receivable of the Mustang Economic Development Authority consist of loans for industrial
development, see also Note 3.E. for related information on the long-term debt.
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Inventories

The city operates concession stands al the various ball complexes owned by the city and maintains a materiais
inventory related o the water and sewer facilities. At June 30, 2012, the unconsumed concession supplies and
materials are recorded as inventory on the first-in, first-out basis.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment {capital assets) depends on whether the assets are used
in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and similar discretely presented component unil
operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements

In the govemment-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund type, property, plant and equipment are
accounted for as capital assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated capitai assets that are recorded at their estimated fair value ai the date of donation.
Estimated historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets acquired prior to June 30, 1991, The
governmental fund infrastructure assets consisting of streets and drainage systems were capitalized for the first time
for the year ended June 30, 2003. The city capitalizes all capital purchases of $1,000 or more.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with
accurnulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The ranges of estimated useful lives by type of
asset are as follows:

¢  Buildings 20-50 years
¢  Other Improvements 20-50 years
¢  Machinery and Equipment 3-25 years
e Utility Sysiem 25-50 years
s  Infrastructure 25-45 years

In the fund financial statements, capiial assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets reported in the fund financial statements include current assets of the governmental and enterprise
funds that are legally restricted as to their use. The primary restricted assets are related 10 revenue bond trustee
accounts restricted for debt service and deposits held for refund.

Long-Term Debt
Accounting treatment of long-term debt varies depending upon the source of repayment and whether the debt is
reported in the govermment-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources and business-type and similar discretely presented
component unit resources are reported as liabilities as incurred. The long-term debt consists primarily of accrued
compensated absences, general obligation bonds payable, judgment funding bonds payable, and revenue bonds
payable. This long-term debt is reported net of unamortized premiums, discounts, and amounts deferred from
refundings, if any.

Long-term debt of governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The deblt
proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures.

Compensated Absences

The city’s policy regarding vacation and compensatory time permits employees to accumulate varying amounts as
determined by management and contracts with employee groups. Sick leave may be sold back at various rates
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accordingly to non-union and union employees. The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-
term debt in the government-wide statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical
trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absences that have
matured, however, the compensated absences obligation is reported as a fund balance reserve in compliance with the
State Constitution.  The General Fund is used 1o liquidate compensated absences. The proprietary fund has no
accrued compensated absences due to the transfer of all employees and related costs to a third-party contractor for
utility operations.

Eguity Classifications

Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external groups such
as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

3. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of ‘“restricted” or “invested in
capital assets, net of related debt™.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Since the City implemented GASB Statement 54, fund
balance is further classified as nonspendable, restricted, commitied, assigned and unassigned. These
classifications are defined as:

a. Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either {a) not in spendable form or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
b. Restricted — consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1} external

groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governmenis, or (2) laws through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Committed ~ included amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest level of decision-
making authority is made by ordinance.

d. Assigned ~ includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes but
are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund balance may be made by city council action or
management decision when the city council has delegated that authority. Assignments for transfers and interest
income for governmental funds are made through budgetary process.

e. Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balance prior 1o the use of the unassigned fund balance when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are available. The City’s
policy for the use of fund balance amounts require that restricted amounts would be reduced first, followed by
committed amounts and then assigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in
any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

Management has not formally adopted a minimum fund balance policy.
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LE. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES

Sales Tax

The City levies a four-cent sales tax on taxable sales within the city. The sales tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax
Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission. The entire sales tax is
recorded as revenue within the General Fund. Upon receipt, the General Fund distributes the dedicated portion of
the sales tax as follows:

0 Three cents transferred to the Mustang Improvement Authority as required by revenue bond
indenture, with two cents transferred back to the general fund for operations. Any portion of the one
cent retained by the MIA not used for debt payments is restricied for capital purchase and is
transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund.

0 One cent transferred to the Mustang Improvement Authority for the payment of debt on the 2006
Revenue Bond per a vote of the citizens.
0 Sales tax resulting from sales occurring prior to year end and received by the City after year end

have been accrued and is included under the caption Due From Other Governments because they
represent taxes on sales occurring during the reporting period.

Property Tax

Under State statutes, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be levied to
repay principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt approved by voters and any court-assessed
judgments. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City levied a property tax to fund the annual debt service
requirements of the 2007 General Obligation Bonds.

The property tax levy, as determined by the City’s debt service needs, is submitted to the County Excise Board for
approval. County assessors, elecled officials, determine the taxable value of real estate and personal property in the
County. A State Board of Equalization hears complaints on real estate values with the power to equalize
assessments. Under present State law, the ratio of assessed value to true value cannot be less than 11 percent nor
more than 13 ¥4 percent.

Property taxes levied by the City are billed and coliected by the County Treasurer’s Office and remitted to the City
in the month following collection. Property taxes are levied normally in October and are due in equal installments
on December 31 and March 31. Property taxes unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on
property in the following October. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City’s net assessed valuation of taxable
property was $109,904,379. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valuation for the year ended
June 30, 2012 was $1.94,

Pledge of Future Revenues

The city has pledged one cent (or 25%) of future sales tax revenues to repay $16,685,000 of Series 2006 Revenue
Bonds. The sales tax is legally restricted by a vote of the citizens and cannot be spent on any other items. Proceeds
from the note provided financing for governmental capital assets. The bonds are payable from pledged sales tax
revenues and are payable through 2021. The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of these
bonds is $16,430,941. Pledged sales iaxes received in the current year were $1,948,520. Debt service payments of
$1,659,713 for the current fiscal year were 85% of the pledged sales taxes. Taxes collected in excess of the debt
service payments are set aside for the early retirement of debt as serial bonds become due.

The city has also pledged future net water and sewer revenues and one cent of sales tax to repay §14,690,000 of the
1998 Revenue Bonds Payable. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for utility system capital assets. The
bonds are payable through 2018. The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of these bonds
and notes is $7,472,907. The bond is payable from the above-mentioned utility net revenues and one cent of sales tax,
if utility revenues will not cover the debt. The debt service payments on the bonds this year were $1,150,740 which
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was 11.25% of pledged net utility and sales tax revenues of $10,241,678.

The city has also pledged future net water and sewer revenues to repay $6,590,000 of the 2009 OWRB Note Payable.
Proceeds from the note provided financing for upgrades to the wastewater treatment plant. The note is payable
through 2029, The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of this note is $4,974,971. The
bond is payable from the above-mentioned utility net revenues. Debt service payments of $355,809 for the cumrent
fiscal year were 3.5% of pledged revenues.

The city has pledged future ad valorem taxes to repay $3,600,000 of the 2012 General Obligation Bonds. Proceeds
from the bonds will provide financing for the construction of a baseball complex and the expansion of the library and
community center. The bonds are payable thru 2027, Levying of an ad valorem tax requires a vote of the citizens. Ad
valorem revenue can only be collected to pay principal and interest on general obligation bonds or court assessed
judgments.  The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of this bond is $4,511,243. No ad
valorem was received in the current fiscal year for the payment of this note. Debt service payments and the levying of
the ad valorem tax will being in fiscal year 2013. In order to levy enough tax to make debt payments as scheduled, the
city must collect debt service in advance for payments due in October.

Expenditures and Expenses

In the government-wide financial staternents, expenses, including depreciation of capital assets, are reported by
function or activity. In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are reported by class as current
(further reported by function), capital outlay and debt service. In the proprietary fund financial statements,
expenses are reported by object or activity.

1.F. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide statement of net assets and
statement of activities, some amounts reporied as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements
have been ¢liminated or reclassified.

Fund Financial Statements:
Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported as follows
in the fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund
receivables and payables.

2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as revenues
and expenditures/expenses.

3. Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures/expenses to
the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements but as adjustments to
expenditures/expenses in the respective funds.

4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected are
reported as transfers in and out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Interfund activity related to services provided and used is not eliminated in the process of consolidating the
government-wide financial statements. All other interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or
reclassified in the government-wide financial statements, as follows:
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Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and payables are
eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net assets, except for the net
residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

1. Internal activities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are
eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of transfers
between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Transfers - Internal
Activities. The effect of interfund services between funds is not eliminated in the statement of
activities.

2. Primary government and component unit activity and balances - resource flows between the primary
government (the City and MIA) and the discretely presented component units (the MEDA) are
reported as if they were external transactions and are classified separately from internal balances and
activities within the primary government.

1.G. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local government unity, the City and its component units are subject to various federal, state and
local laws and contractual regulations.

2.A. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES OR NET ASSETS

Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in any individual
fund of the City (excluding public trusts). At June 30, 2012, the city reported no individual fund deficits.

2.B. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with State Statutes, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions must be secured
with acceptable collateral valued at the lower of market or par. Acceptable collateral includes certain U.S.
Government or Government Agency securities, certain State of Oklahoma or political subdivision debt obligations,
surety bonds, or certain letters of credit. As required by 12 U.S.C.A., Section 1823(e), all financial institutions
pledging collateral to the city must have a written collateral agreement approved by the board of directors or loan
committee.

Investments of a City (excluding Public Trusts) are limited by State Statute to the following:
a. Direct obligations of the U. 5. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit

of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State
of Oklahoma is pledged.
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b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with in-
state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial
institutions.

¢. With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial paper
and repurchase agreements with certain limitations,

d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation notes, money
judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or
school district.

e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and debentures
issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage Association.

f.  Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which invesiments consist of the investments mentioned in
the previous paragraphs a., b, ¢. and d.

Public trusts created under O.S. Title 60, are not subject to the above noted investment limitations and are primarily
governed by any restrictions in their trust or bond indentures. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the city and its
public trusts, complied with the above investment restrictions.

2.C. DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS
General Long-Term Debt

As required by the Oklahoma State constitution, the City (excluding Public Trusts) may not incur any indebtedness
that would require payment from resources beyond the current fiscal year revenue without first obtaining voter
approval.

Revenue Bond Debit

The bond indentures relating to ihe revenue bond issued of the MIA contain a number of financial restrictions or
covenants. These include covenants requiring flow of funds through special accounts, required reserve account
balances and revenue bond debt service coverage requirements. The MIA complied with the requirements of the
bond indentures in all material respects for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012,

Notes Payable

The loan agreement with the Oklahoma Water Resources Board relating to the interim construction note payable of
the Mustang Improvement Authority contains a number of financial restrictions or covenants. These include
covenants requiring a flow of funds through special accounts and a note payable debt service coverage requirement.
The note agreement requires net revenues of the system plus pledged and transferred sales tax 1o be at least 125% of
maximum annual debt service. The MIA complied with the requirements of the note indentures in all material
respects for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012,

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES - TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic financial statements for
its various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
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3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The City’s policies regarding deposits of cash and investments are discussed in Note 1.E.
Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the city’s deposits may not be returned
or the city will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.

Deposits in financial institutions, reported as components of cash, cash equivalents, and investments had a bank
balance of $15,083,169 at June 30, 2012, that were insured by depository insurances or secured with collateral held
by the City’s agent in its name. The city was under collateralized at one financial institution. Deposits in excess of
available collateral and FDIC insurance totaled $647,356.

Total bank deposits of $3,171 of the discretely presented component units were insured with Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation Insurance.

As of June 30, 2012, the City’s reporting entity had the following deposits and investments:

Credit
Type Fair Value Raling Maturities in Years
On Demand Less than one 1-5
Demmand Deposits and cash on hand 56,892,019 na $6,892.019 -
Money Market Accounts 2,779,191 na 2,779,191 .
Certificates of Deposit 6.5375,799 na - 56,575,799 -
$16,247,009 $9.671.210 £6,575,799 .

Reconciliation 10 Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 56,874,770
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 6,084,341
Invesiments 2,251,490
Invesiments, restricled 1,036,408
$16,247,009

Investments

The city does not have a formal investment policy that limils investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. There is no limit on the amount it may invest in
any one issuer. The city has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitation of State
Statutes discussed in Note 2.B.

3.B. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consists of customer utilities receivable. Accounts receivable of

the governmental activities consists of franchise tax, police fines, and E-911 receivables. Receivables detail at June
30, 2012, is as follows:
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Accounts Receivable
Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Net Accounts Receivable

Governmental Business-Type
Activilies Activities Total
$305,870 $1,042,097 $1,347.967
(122,348) {14,991) {137,339
$183,522 $1,027,106 $1,210,628

3.C. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The amounts reported as restricted assets in the fund financial statements are comprised of cash and invesiments
held by the trustee bank on behalf of the various public trusts {authorities) related to their required revenue bond
accounts as described in Note 2.E., and deposits held for refund. The restricted assets as of June 30, 2012 were as

follows:

Governmental Activilies:
Construction Accounts
Debt Service

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Aclivities:
Deposits subject to refund
Debt Service

Total Business-type Aclivities

Total Restricted Assets

Cash and Cash
F.quivalents Investments Taolal
$3,545,793 - $3,545,793
11.209 - 11,209
3.557,002 - 3,557,002
$31,002 $276,062 $307.064
2,496,337 760,346 3,256,683
2,527,319 1,036,408 3,563,747
$6,084,341 $1.036.408 57,120,749

3.D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions in the statement of activities as follows:

Restated,
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additigns Disposals June 30, 2012
Governmental Activities.
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $826,708 - - $826,708
Construction-in-progress 412,923 3154629 359,165 508,387
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 1,239,631 154,629 54,165 1,335,095
Depreciable assets
Buildings 16,684,848 - - 16,684,848
Other improvements 426,765 - - 426,765
Machinery and equipment 8,672,872 376,514 - 9,049,386
Infrastruciure 38,826,118 24,544 - 38,850,662
Total depreciable assets 64,610,603 401,058 - 65,011,661
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 4,650,971 502,411 - 5,153,382
Other improvements 195,206 20,377 - 215,583
Machinery and equipment 5,614,933 555,356 - 6,170,289
Infrastruclure 28,740,599 490,455 - 29,231,054
Total accurmnulated depreciation 39,201,709 1,568,599 - 40,770,308
Net depreciable assets 25,408,894 (1,167,541) - 24,241,353
Governmenial activities capital assets, nel 526,648,525 -$1,012,912 £59,165 525,576,448
Business Type Activities:
Restaled,
Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Disposals June 30, 2012
Business -type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated;
Land $452,326 - - 3452326
Construction-in-progress 29,450 - - 29,450
Total Capital assets not being depreciated 481,776 - - 481,776
Depreciable Assels:
Buildings 11,297,333 - - 11,297,333
Other inprovements 33,3% - - 33,396
Machinery and equipment 676,381 4,008 - 680479
Utility Properly 28,960,918 11,391 - 28,972,309
Total depreciable assets 40,968,028 15,489 - 40,983,517
Less eccurmulated depreciation:
Buildings 2,044,274 225,947 - 2,270,221
Olher inprovements 14,361 1,12 - 15473
Machinery and equipment 516,868 2,17 - 544,585
Infrastructure 12,845,439 697,582 - 13,543,021
Total accurmulated depreciation 15,420,942 952,358 - 16,373,300
Net depreciable assets 25,547,086 (936,869) - 24,610,217
Business-1ype aclivities capital assets, net 526,028,862 -$936,869 - $25,091,993
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Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

Administration $399,883
Culture and Recreation 306,990
Community Development 16,671
Public Safety 373,547
Streets and Drainage 471.508

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities  $1,568,599

Business-Type Activities:

Water $458,300
Wastewater 481,858
General Government 11,542
Sanitation 649

Total depreciation expense for business-type activities ~ $252,358

3.E. LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity's long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from govemmental activities,
amounts to be repaid from business-type activities, and amounts to be repaid from component units.

Governmental Activities:
At June 30, 2012, the governmental activities long-term debt consisted of the following:

General Obligation Bonds:
$3,600,000 General Obligation Bonds of 212, due in thirteen annual installments of $255,000,
and a final installment of $285,00 first payment due June 2014 final payment due June 2027,
with interest rates of .09% to 3.9%, o be repaid from a property tax levy.
Current portion zero $3,600,000

Non-Current portion $3,600,000

Capital Lease Obligations:
$85,101 note to Weich State Bank for purchase of a backhoe due in sixty monthly installments of
$1,564, with an interest rate of 3.919%. Current portion $17,731, non —current portion

$16,805.
$34,536
$143,219 note to Ford Motor Credit for the purchase of two police cars and a police administrative
vehicle due in three annual installments of $50,455 with an interest rate of 5.799%. Current
portion $45,075, non-current portion $47,689. 92,764

46



City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

$124,040 note to Ford Motor Credit for the purchase of three police cars due in three annual

installments of $44.213 with an interest rate of 7.10%. Current portion $41,282 41,282

Taotal Capital Lease Qutstanding 5168,582

Current portion $104,088

Non-current portion 64.494

Total Capital Lease Payable $168,582

Accrued Compensated Absences:

Current portion $25,279
Non-current portion 227.514
Total Accrued Compensated Absences $252,793

Business-Type Activities:
As of June 30, 2012, the long-term debt payable from business-type activilies resources consisted of the following:

Notes Payable:
2009 Interim Construction Clean Water SRF Promissory Note to the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board, criginal issue amount of $6,590,000, secured by utility revenues and
sales tax revenue, interest rate of 2.310% and administrative fee of .5%, final maturity
June 2029. Current portion $329,500, non-current portion $3.410,294, $3,739,794

Revenue Bonds Payable:
1998 A Refunding Revenue Bonds, original issue amount of $11,355,000, dated
September 1, 1998, issued by the Mustang Improvement Authority, secured by
utility revenues and pledged sales tax, interest rates from 5.25% to 5.625%, with
final maturity December 1, 2015. Current portion $865,000, non-current $2,880,000 £3,745,000

1998B Refunding Revenue Bonds, original issue amount of $3,335,000, dated
September 1, 1998, issued by the Mustang Lmprovement Authority, secured by
Utility revenues and pledged sales tax, interest rates from 4.75% to 4.850%, with
final maturity December 1, 2018. All outstanding debt is non-current. 2,355,000

2006 Refunding Revenue Bonds, original issue amount of $16,885,000, dated May 1, 2006,
issued by the MIA io be repaid with a voter restricted City sales tax and also secured by
utility revenues, interest rates from 3.6% to 5.00%, with final maturity October 1, 2021.
Bonds were issued to advance refund a portion of the outstanding 1999 Revenue Bonds.

Current portion §1,055,000, non-current $11,915,000. $12,970.000
Total Revenue Bonds Outstanding £19,070,000
Unaccreted bond premium 287,649
Unamortized loss on refunding (1,128,672)
Unamortized bond discount (31,904)
Net Revenue Bonds Payable 318,197,073
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Current portion $1,920,000
Non-current portion 16.277.073
Total Revenue Bonds Payable 518,197,073

Interest expense related to the 1998A and B Revenue Bonds was directly charged to the walter and wastewater
programs with each program being charged $165,370. Interest expense related to the 2006 Revenue bonds does not
relate to the actual programs of the business-type activities, and therefore is not charged to the specific programs.
Interest is shown on the Statement of Changes in Net Assets in a separate line tilled general government activities
totaling $732,472.

Component Unit Debt
At June 30, 2012, the long-term debt payable from component unit resources consisted of the following:
2001 Industrial Revenue Note issued through the Oklahoma Industrial Finance Authority,

original issue amount of $1,993,439, dated March 26, 2000, issued on behalf of Industrial
Gasket, Inc. Payable solely from the revenues of the parallel company note. Due in

fifteen years with interest at 6.55% $361.381
Current portion 5191,744
Non-current portion 169.637
Total Component Unit Debt $361,381

Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Balance Balance Amounts Due in
July 1,2011 Addilions Retirements Jung 30, 2012 ne Y eat

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds $240,000 $3,600,000 $240,000 $3,600,000 -

Capital Lease Payable 131,422 143,219 106,058 168,583 104,088

Accrued Compensaled Absences 230,319 206,157 183,683 252,793 25,279
Total Governmenial Activities $601,741 $3,949,376 $529,741 $4,021,376 $129,367
Business Type Activilies:

Notes payable $4,003,393 - $263,600 $3,739,793 $329,500

Revenue Bonds Payable 20,905,000 - 1,835,000 19,070,000 1,920,000

Unamortized Bond Discount (37,794} - 5,890 {31,904) -

Unaccreted Bond Premium 318,746 - 31,097 287,649 -

Unamortized Gain/Loss on Refunding (1,250,691) - 122,019 (1,128,672) -
Toial Business Type Activities $23,938,654 - £2,257,606 $21,936,866 $£2,249,500
Component Unit - MEDA:

Revenue Bond $541,000 - $179,619 361,381 $191,744

Annual Debt Service Requirements - Primary Government
The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt as of June 30,
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2012 are as follows:

[ Governmental Activities |
Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Capital Lease
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 - $101,168 £104,088 $9,352
2014 255,000 101,168 64,495 3,098
2015 255,000 90,968 - -
2016 255,000 84,593 - -
2017 255,000 80,768 - -
2018-2022 1,275,000 317,138 - -
2023-2027 1,305,000 135,440 - -
$3,600,000 $911,243 $168,583 $12,450

Annual Debt Service Requirements - Primary Government, continued

| Business Type Activities ] [ Component Unit |
Year Ending Revenue Bonds Note Payable Revenue Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Principal lnterest Principal Interest
2013 $1,920,000 $93,920 £329,500 $125,906 F161,744 $17,982
2014 2,005,000 §50,396 329,500 118,295 169,637 5,134
2015 2,100,000 750,858 329,500 110,683 - -
2016 2,205,000 640,771 329,500 103,072 - -
2017 2,315.000 553,008 329,500 103,072 - -
2018-2022 8,525,000 1,099,535 1,647,500 401,186 - -
2023-2027 - - 701,200 15,857 - -
2027-2030 - - - - - -
Total $19,070,000 $3,988,488 $3,996,900 $978,071 $361,381 $23,116
Amount 10 be drawn 257,107
Amount oulstanding $3,735,793

A.F. INTERFUND TRANSACTION AND BALANCES
Interfund receivable and payable balances reported in the fund financial statements at June 30, 2012 were as

follows:
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Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amounnt Nature of Interfund Balance
* MlA *  General Fund 5 1464 To cover revenye transfer
Total s 1,464
|
Due From Due To Net Internal
Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements: Other Funds Other Funds Balances

Governmental Funds $ - 3 1.464 S (1464)
Proprietary Funds 1.464 - 1,464
Total $ 1,464 s 1,464 5 &
* Fund is a major fund
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows:
Transler from Transfer o Amount Nature of Interfund Balance
*  General Fund * MIA § 7,794,576 Pledged sales 1ax- bond indenture
*  General Fund Streets and Drainage 320,000 Budgeted annual operaling transfer
*  General Fund Capital Project 89,704 Budgeted annual operating tnsfer
General Fund MlA 4,098 Capilal asset
* Mla *  General Fund 3,300,000 Budgeted annual operating trans fer
* MIA *  General Fund 3,897,288 Pledged sales 1ax- bond indenture
* MIA Streets and Drainage 236,612 Sanilation franchise fees
v MIA Capilal Project 208,188 Budgeted annual operating transler
* MIA Capital Project 582,798  Sales tax per ordinance

* Represents major fund

3 16,433,264

Transfer of
Reconciliation 1o Fund Financial Statements: Transfers in _ Transfers out  Capital Assets Total
Govemnmentai Funds 5 8634390 3 8204280 § (4,098) $ 424,212
Propreietary Funds 7,798,674 8,224,886 - (426,212)
Total § 16433264 5 16,425,166 (4,058) -
3.G. FUND BALANCES AND NET ASSESTS
Government Wide Financial Statements:
Net Asset Restrictions at June 30, 2012 were as follows:
Fund Restricled By Amounl
Debt Service Enabling legislation b 13,957
Park Improvemenls Enabling legislation 58,441
Traffic Enforcement Enabling legislation 14,477
3 #6875
Library External ) 10,224
Streat improvements Externa) 555,770
2012 General Obligation Bonds - Ball fields External 1,526,350
2012 General Obligation Bonds - Town Center External 2,018,821
Capital Improvements Exlernal 963,562
$ SIO'M,TZT

Restricted net assets of the business type activities of $3,121,562 is restricted for debt service.
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Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (Government Wide Financial Statements Total Column):

The 1999 and 2006 Revenue Bonds of the business-type aciivities were used to fund governmental capital assets
(police station, community center, and recreation facilities). The “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” in
the business-lype activities therefore does not include the amounts related to this debt issue as the assets are in the
governmental activities. This explains the large negative balance of unrestricted net assets in the business-type
activities. The capital assets related to this debt are reported in the governmental activities and are also reported in
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.” The total column for the “invested in capital assets, net of related
debt” on the Statement of Net Assets does include the amounts related to this debt of $12,970,000, therefore
explaining why this amouni does not total across.

Fund Level Financial Statements:

Other
General 2012 GO Bond 2012 GO Bond Governmental
Fund Project - Ballfields  Project - Town Center Fund Total
Fund Balance:

Nonspendable:
[nventory 5 24.561 § - M - s - H 24,561

Restricled For:
Police operations - - . 14,477 14477
Library operations 10,224 - - - 10,224
Park improvements - 1,526,350 2,018,821 58,441 3,503,612
Debit Service - - . 13,957 13,957
Capilal improvements . - - 963,562 963,562
Streel improvements - - - 555,770 555,770
Sub-total restricted 10,224 1,526,350 2.018.821 1.606.207 5,161,602

Assigned for:

Capilal improvemenis 3,838 Al arl 549,428 553,888
Library operatiens 20,126 - - - 20,126
Park improvements - - - 68,377 68,377
Street improvements - - - 653,570 653,570
Police operations - - - 150 150
Next fiscal year budget 791,171 - - - 791.171
Sub-tolal assigned 815,135 31l 31 1.271.525 2,087,282
Unassigned: 2,607,400 - - - 2,607,400
TOTAL FUND BALANCE H 3.457.320 3 1,526,661 § 2,019,132 % 2,877,732 8§ 9,880,845

Net assets were restated at the government-wide level due to the understatement of capital assets in both the
governmental and business-type activities, as follows:
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Business-type

Governmental Activities/Enterprise
Activities Fund
‘Beginning net Assels, as previously reporied 3 31,246,857 3 9,407,984
Understatemnent of capital assets 3,605 67,372
Beginning net assels, restated 5 31,250,462 3 9,475,356

NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES
4.A. EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

The city participates in three employee pension systems as follows:

Name of Plan/System Type of Plan
Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer - Defined Benefit Plan
Okliahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer - Defined Benefit Plan
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF) Agent Multiple Employer — Defined Benefit Plan

Oklahoma Police and Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement Systems

Plan Description. The City of Mustang, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost-sharing multi-
employer defined benefit plans on behalf of the policemen and firefighters. The plans provide retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
systems are administered by agencies of the State of Oklahoma and funded by contributions from participants,
employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as necessary. Both plans issue publicly available
financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be
obtained as follows: Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 1001 N.W, 63" Ste. 605, Oklahoma City,
QK 73116-7335 and/or the Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System, 4545 N. Lincoln Blvd., Ste.
265, Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414.

Funding Policy. Plan members of both plans are required to contribute 8 percent of their annual covered payroll,
and the City of Mustang is required to contribute 13 percent of the annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of the plan member and the city are established by state statute and may be amended by the
legislature. The state made on be-half payments to the Police and Fire pension plans of $115,658 and $242,525,
respectively. The city’s contributions to each of the plans are listed beiow. The contributions are equal to the
required contributions for each year, for each plan.
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City contributions required by State statute:

Oklahoma Police Oklahoma Firefighter’s
Pension and Retirement System Pension and Retirement System
Fiscal RequiredPercentage Required Percentage
Year Contribution  Contributed Contribution Contributed
2010 $128,933 100% $105,535 100%
2011 133,321 100% 115,571 100%
2012 140,380 100% 124,594 100%

Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Plan (OMRF)

Plan Description. The City contributes to the City of Mustang and Mustang Improvement Authority Plan and
Trust in the form of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System Master Defined Benefit Plan and Trust, an
agent multiple employer-defined benefit plan. The plan provides retirement and disability benefit and death
benefits to full-time, non-uniformed employees of the City or Authority upon hire, if less than age 60 and their
beneficiaries. Administration of the City's individual plan rests with the City Council. The overall operations
of OMRF are supervised by a nine-member Board of Trustees elected by the participating municipalities. Bank
One of Oklahoma City acts as administrator and securities custodian. OMRF issues separate plan financial
statements that includes required supplementary information that may be obtained by contacting the Oklahoma
Municipal Retirement Fund, 100 N. Broadway, Oklahoma City, OK 73102.

Funding Policy. OMRF members are required to contribute 5.25 percent of their annual covered payroll. The
city is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 13.86 percent of covered
payroll. The plan does not allow for the empioyee to contribute more than 5.25 percent. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the city are established and may be amended by the OMRF Board with
approval of the City Council.

Annual Pension Cost. For fiscal year 2012 the city’s annual pension cost of $252,878 was equal to the city’s
required contributions. The General Fund is used to liquate net pension obligations.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2010 $216,468 100% 80

June 30, 2011 $238.065 100% 30

June 30, 2012 $252.878 100% 30

The required contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation using the entry age
actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at July 1, 2009 included (a} 7.5 percent investment rate of return,
(b) projected salary increases range from 3.0 to 7.42 percent, and (c) no COLA. The actuarial value of the plan
assets was determined using actuarial write up method. This method is used to reduce the effect of fluctuations in
market value. The actuarial value of assets is equal to the prior year’s value adjusted for cash flows and interest at
the valuation rate. This amount is adjusted by a percentage of the difference between it and market. The plans
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is the difference between the actuarial liability and the actuarial value of plan
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assets. The amount (redetermined each year) is amortized over 30 years from the valuation date on a closed basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2012 the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
78.7 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $4,973,611, and the actuarial value of asseis
was $3,914,519, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,059,092. The covered payroll
{annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1,733,784 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 61.1 percent. The unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities are being amortized as a level percentage of
payroll over a closed period of thirty years.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description. The City sponsors Medical and Rx insurance to qualifying retirees and their dependents.
Coverage is provided through fully-insured arrangements that collectively operate as a substantive single-employer
defined benefit plan. Qualifying retirees are those employees who are eligible for immediate disability or retirement
benefits under the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retirement System, or the City of Mustang Retirement Plan. Retirees may continue coverage with the City by
paying the carrier premium rate. Coverage is available for each of the lifetimes of retirees and their spouses.
Authority to establish and amended benefit provisions rest with the City Council. Retirees may continue coverage
with the City by paying the premium rate. Benefits are paid from general operating assets of the City.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City arc established by the City Council.
Annual health insurance premium amounts are established by the city council. The required contribution is based on
projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, For fiscal year 2012, the actuarially expected City contribution in
the form of net age adjustment was $7,961 to the Plan,

Plan members receiving benefits contributed $7,961 of the total premiums, through their payment of the full
determined premium in FY 2012.

Annual QPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period of thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB
cost, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for the year ended
June 30, 2012:

Annual required conirdbution b3 65,521
Inlerest on NPO 6,895
Amortization ol net OPEB Obligation (14,726)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 57,690
Expected net benefits during the year {4,586)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 53,104
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 156,968
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 3 210,072
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The City's annual OPEB cosl, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Cost Nel OPEB

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 $89,358 12% $78,484
6/30/11 $92,733 12% 5160,343
6/30/12 $57,690 14% $210,072

Information for the preceding years was not available. Fiscal year 2010 was the first year the City was required to
have an actuary performed and report any liability.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not
funded. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $479,365, and the actuarial value of assets was zero,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $479,365. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $3,577,000 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 13 perceni. Because the plan is a substantive plan there are no plan assets.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actuai resuits are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future, The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multivear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations,

In the July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.3 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a biended
rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated
based on the funded level of the Plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 6 percent
initially, reduced by decremeats to an ultimate rate of 5 percent in 2013. The UAAL is being amortized over 30
years based on a level dollar amortization basis. The remaining ameortization period at July 1, 2011, was twenty-
eight years open. As of the date of this valualion, there are no plan assets. Retiree premiums are paid as they come
due from general operating assets of the City.

4.B. RISK MANAGEMENT .

The city is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; employee’s health and life; and natural disasters. The city manages these various
risks of loss with purchased commercial insurance for all major programs except workers’ compensation, for which
the city retains risk of loss. For insured programs, there has been no significant reduction is insurance coverage.
Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.
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The self-insured workers” compensation program is accounted for in the Internal Service Fund with participating
departments charged through an estimated annual claim cost. The plan is administered by the city with the
assistance of a third party for claims discounting and processing.

Claims Liability Analysis

The claims liabilities related to the above noted risks of loss that are retained are determined in accordance with the
requirement of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to
the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. For the self-insured worker’s
compensation program, changes in the claims liability for the City from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2012, was as
follows:

Claims Liability Analysis:

Claim liability, June 30, 2010 $144 407
Claims and changes in estimates 311,738
Claims payments (96,151)
Claim liability, June 30, 2011 $359,994
Claims and changes in estimates (7,441)
Claims payments (137,907)
Claim liability, June 30, 2012 $214,646

Assets available to pay claims at
June 30, 2012 $520.190

Based on past experience, no estimated liability for claims incurred but not reported is considered necessary or
material. Net asset reserves at June 30, 2012 of $305,544 were the result of the City’s attempt to set aside funds for
possible future catastrophic losses. The city maintains a stop-loss policy for plans to limit the risk associated with
the self-insured plans. For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage.
Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.

4.C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments:

Privatization of Improvement Authority Services

The City has contracted with an independent firm to operate certain public service functions of the city and the
Mustang Improvement Authority including water, sewage, streets, parks, and animal control. The service
contract provides for the lease of the City’s facilities to the firm, allowing the contractor to use city vehicles and
equipment. During fiscal year 2011-2012, the City paid $1,854,036 in privatization fees, including overages for
repair and maintenance. In addition, the sanitation services are privatized. Total fees related to sanitation
privatization were $1,040,783.

Lowe’s Economic Development Agreement

On June 19, 2007, the City of Mustang entered into an economic development agreement with Lowe’s Home
Improvement Warehouse. Under the terms of the agreement the City will provide economic incentives in
exchange for Lowe’s constructing a 95,000 square foot retail store within the city limits of Mustang. The
incentives, valued at $1,760,000, are payable over a five year period and will reimburse Lowe’s for the
construction and installation of public infrastructure. The incentive is only payable upon Lowe’s compliance
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incentives, valued at $1,760,000, are payable over a five year period and will reimburse Lowe’s for the
construction and installation of public infrastructure. The incentive is only payable upon Lowe’s compliance
with cerfain performance conditions. Conditions musi be satisfied for each one-year period following
completion and opening of the project. The performance conditions include: construction of the project must
commence on or before December 31, 2007; prior to December 31, 2008 Lowe’s must spend at least
$10,000,000 on the project and the related infrastructure; once complete the retail store will operate and generate
a payroll of at least $2,000,000 annually during each year of the incentive; and the project will generate retail
sales of not less than $15,000,000 annually during each year of the incentive. If Lowe’s fails to meet the
performance conditions in any one-year period, they shall not receive the incentive for that year, The incentive,
paid at $352,000 each year, will be paid from a portion of the sales tax generated by the retail store during each
one-year period. Lowe’s opened the retail store on June 8, 2008 and met the incentive requirement for the period
ended June §, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012. Under the terms of the contract the remaining payments are recorded
as encumbrances. This encumbrance is reported in the General Fund on the fund level. The sales tax in the
current year that relates to the pledged tax commitment will be used to pay the current year commitments.

In July 2008, the City entered into an agreement with a local bank to provide an irrevocable Letter of Credit in
the total sum of $1,760,000 to the City through January 2014, with interest calculated at the Wall Street Journal
prime rate with a current rate of 5.0 percent. The letter of credit was issued to secure the potential obligations in
the above noted Economic Development Agreement with Lowe's.  The Letter of Credit is payable in partial
drawing of $352,000 to Lowe’s should Lowe’s meet the operating indicators listed above and the City fails to
make timely payment. Borrowing under the credit facility is secured by the pledged sales tax.

Contingencies:

Grant Program Involvement

In the normal course of operations, the City participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year
to year. The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning
agency, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan. Any
liability of reimbursement, which may arise as a result of these audits, cannot be reasonably determined at this
time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

Litigation

The City is a party to various legal proceedings, which normally occur in the course of governmental operations,
The financial statements do not include accrual or provisions for loss contingencies that may result from these
proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a three-year period by a City Sinking
Fund for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered against the city.

While the outcome of the above noted proceedings camnot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage
maintained by the city and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or judgment
not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the city. This
statutory taxing ability is not available to the city’s public trusts (Authorities).

4.D. Future Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued several new accounting pronouncements, which will be effective in subsequent years. A
description of the new accounting pronouncements, the fiscal year in which they are effective, and the City’s
consideration of the impact of these pronouncements are described below:

Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements — GASB 60
addresses issues related to service concession arrangements (SCA’s), which are a type of public-private or public-
public partnership. This Statement applies only to those arrangements in which specific criteria determining
whether a transferor has control over the facility are met. Management is still evaluating the effect this Statement
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will have on the City’s financial statements. The Statement is effective for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013.

Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus -~ An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 34. GASB No. 61 modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting
entity and also amends the criteria for reporting component units as if they were part of the primary government
(that is, blending) in certain circumstances. Earlier application is encouraged. The City does not believe that the
adoption of GASB No. 61 will have a significant impact on its financial statement presentation. The Statement is
effective for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013.

Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. GASB No. 62 is intended to enhance the usefulness of its Codification
by incorporating guidance that previously could only be found in certain FASB and AICPA pronouncements. The
City does not believe that the adoption GASB No. 62 will have a significant impact on its financial position,
activities or cash flows, or its financial statement presentation. The Statement is effective for fiscal years ended
June 30, 2013.

Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Net Position. GASB No. 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial
statement elements, which are distinct from assels and liabilities. Adoption of this statement will require the City
to make changes in its financial statement presentation. The Statement is effective for fiscal years ended June 30,
2013.

Statement No. 65, ftems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. GASB No. 65 establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources,
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources
(expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues), certain items that were previously recognized as assets and
liabilities. The City has not quantified the effects of adoption of GASB No. 65 on its net position. The Statement
is effective for fiscal years ended June 30, 2014.

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.
GASB No. 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and pension expenses. GASB No. 68 also details the recognition and disclosure
requirements for employers with liabilities to a defined benefit pension plan and for employers whose employees
are provided with defined contribution pensions. Defined benefit pensions are further classified by GASB No. 68
as single employer plans, agent employer plans and cost-sharing plans, and recognition and disclosure
requirements are addressed for each classification. GASB No. 68 was issued in June 2012, and the City has not
yet determined the impact that implementation of GASB No. 68 will have on its net position. The Statement is
effective for fiscal years ended June 30, 2015.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the GASB
but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

*  Schedule of Funding Progress — Defined Benefit Retirement Plan
*  Budgetary Comparison Schedules — General Fund

*  Notes to RSI — Budgetary Comparison Schedules

RSI- OPEB

Site)
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PENSION PLAN FUNDING PROGRESS

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan — Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Unfunded

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL} AAL Funded Covered Percentage of

Date Assets (3) Entry Age (2) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll (1) Cavered Payroll
January 1, 2003 $1,182,521 81,595,757 $413,236 74.1%  §$1,110,020 37.2%
January 1, 2004 51,392,235 $1,916,820 $524,585 72.6% §1,132,122 46.3%
Janvary 1, 2005 $1,624,861 $2,234,163 $609,302 72.7%  $1,170,525 52.1%
January 1, 2006 $1,865,296 $2.668,418 $803,122 69.9% $1,155,614 69.5%
January 1, 2007 $2,183,142 $3,019,494 $836,352 72.3%  $1,378,439 60.7%
January 1, 2008 $2,527,907 $3,433,182 $905,275 73.6% $1,423,180 63.6%
January 1, 2009 $2,660,658 $3,985,112 51,324,454 66.8%  $1,590,025 81.3%
January 1, 2010 $2,966,587 $4,288,857 $1,322,270 69.2% 81,533,262 86.2%
January 1, 2011 53,426,895 $4,618,060 $£1,191,165 74.2% $1,602,132 74.3%
January 1, 2012 $3,914,519 54,973,611 $1,059,092 78.7%  §1,733,784 61.1%

Covered payroll is the total annualized rate of pay as of the valuation date based on actual pay for the preceding year and not
the actual covered payroll during the fiscal year.

(N The actuarial value of assets is related to market value, but smoothed to reduce the volatility of contribution
requirements,

(2) During FY 2003-2004 the City amended the plan to the Rule of §0-retirement option.
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Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance:

Resources (nflows):
Taxes:

Sales ax

Use ux

Franchise tax

Total Taxes

Luense and Permas:
Occupational keenses
Construction perrnils
Anmmnal heense
Inspection fees
Oiber permis and weenses

Tolal Lxenses and Permas

Ieuergovermunenial
Alkohotic beverape 1ax
Tobaceo 1ax
Grants
Gasolme eacise tax
Commercal vehick: fee
911 commumicaton fee

Total Interpoverninental

Charges fir Services:
Aquatc charges
Aqualic concessions
Recreatinal programs
Ball concessions
Ball league and gale fees
Aerobt fees
Room remak

Afier school programs and camps

Memberships
Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Mecelhneous:
Donations
MEcelaneous
Total Mecelincous

Invesunent Income:

Other Financal Sources:
Translers In

Toial iber Fuancmg Sowrces

Amounts avaiabk for appropration

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

61

GENERAL FUND
Variance with
Budge ied Amounts Actual Final Budgel
Original Final Amounts Posltive (Negntlve}
3 1,216,000 5§ 1,216,000 5§ 11507 1,899,707
7675000 7,794,085 7876617 B2532
285,000 285,000 22937 [62.063)
G 562 664,562 03,574 39012
4.624.562 8. T43.647 8,803.128 59481
61,500 61,500 60,136 {1314
90,000 90,000 93667 3667
500 500 2076 1576
15,000 15,000 895 (6,105
21350 21350 1926 (13424)
188,350 188,350 172,750 {15,600}
48,000 48,000 66,269 18,269
103,000 108,000 113262 5262
120,000 133916 21562 112354)
36300 36300 32326 3974)
95,500 116,000 119005 3,005
7550 2,550 6487 (1,063)
415350 449,766 358911 {90.855)
158,000 158,000 188,990 30,990
35,000 35,000 36384 1384
22,000 22000 21627 {373)
105,000 105,000 809 124,026
95,000 55,000 75765 (19.235)
25000 25,000 14,722 (10.278)
60,000 60,000 47,068 7.068
110,000 110,000 1292% 19,294
148,500 148,500 151,757 31257
758,500 758,500 766,581 8.081
193,200 193,200 216462 23262
5,000 24481 15,407 [9:074)
165,500 17,113 276,106 102,993
170,500 1975 291513 93.919
13.000 15,000 12374 (2.626)
7249500 7309288 7197288 {112,000}
7249500 T309,288 1197288 (112,000)
3 18.830.962 § 19071345 §  20.534.714 }H 1,863,369
{conimued)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
Variance with
Budge ted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Origlnal Final Amounts Poslilve (Negaiive)
Charges o Appropiations (ou lews):
ADMINISTRATION:
Mayar/Councit 276870 282,970 251231 25,739
Cty Manager 657,885 568,491 509,525 58.966
Finance 479209 475,681 406,041 69,640
General Government 1,512,170 1,689.978 1,620007 69971
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2926,134 3017120 2192804 224316
CULTURE AND RECREATION:
Liwary 92,892 413,483 389,573 22910
Bel Counplex 06,502 277802 244,579 33223
Aquatic 209,222 269,852 144,884 24,968
Town Center 269,966 261972 253,507 BA465
Parks B33.995 807,254 839,789 37465
TOTAL CULTURE AND RECREATION 2012517 2120363 1992332 128,031
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 485,076 477,106 417182 59,724
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police 2,605,030 2621730 2469519 152,111
Fire 1,546,155 1,641.200 1,523.414 117,786
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 4,151,185 4,262,930 3993033 269897
STREET: 155.000 203,500 21333 19534
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers 1o other Tunds 8.134,050 8253,135 8,204,280 4BBS55
Total Charpes 10 Approprizions 17.863,962 18,334,154 17,613,165 720989
ENDING BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE ] 967,000 $ 737.191 5 3,321,549 H 2.584.358
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ON BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL

Sourcesfinflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis} "available for appropriation" from
the budgetary comparison schedule.

Differences - budget lo GAAP:

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgelary resource
but is not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes.

Transfers from olher funds are inflows of budgelary resources but are

not revenues for financial reporting purposes.
Paymenls lo police and fire pension systems made by the State of

Oklahoma are revenues for financial reporting purpose but not
budgetary purposes

The aclivity of the municipal court fund are not inflows of budgetary
resources bul are revenues for financial reporting purposes.

Account combined with the General Fund due 10 the implentation of
GASB Siatement 54are revenues for financial reporting purposes but
not budgelary purposes

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues. expenditures.
and changes in fund balances - governmenial funds

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgelary basis) "tolal charges 1o appropriations”
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budgel 1o GAAP:
Paymenis 10 police and fire pension sysiems made by Lhe State of
Oklahoma are revenues for financial reporting purpose but not
budgetary purposes
Account combined with the General Fund due 1o the implentation of
GASB Stalemeni 54 are expenditues for financial reporting purposes
bul not budgetary purposes

Other expenditures

Transfers 1o other funds are outflows of budgetary resources bui are
not expenditures for financial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes i fund balarices - governmenial funds
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General Fund

$20,934,714

(3.115,707)

(7,197,288}

358,183

(278)

18,132

$10,997.756

817,613,165

358,183

23,406

1293

(8,204,280)

$9,791,767
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BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL

Budget Law
The city prepares its annual operating budget under the provisions of the Municipal Budget Act of 1979 (the "Budget Act"). In

accordance with those provisions, the following process is used to adopt the annual budget:

a. Prior to June 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following July 1.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. Al least one public hearing must be held no later than 15 days
prior to July 1.

c. Subsequent to the public hearings but no later than seven days prior to July 1, the budget is adopted by resolution of the City
Council.

d. By July 1, the adopted budget is filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector.

All funds of the city with revenues and expenditures are required to have annual budgets under this section of the state law, except
funds of public trusts or authorities. The legal level of control at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is the
department within a fund. The Budget Act recognizes the following object categories of control by department within a fund:
Personal Services, Materials and Supplies, Other Services and Charges, Capital Qutlay, Debt Service, and Interfund Transfers.

Transfers of appropriations between departments and supplemental appropriations require City Council approval. The City
Manager may transfer appropriations between object categories within a department without City Council approval. Supplemental
appropriations must also be filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector. The city exceeded appropriation in the following
categories:

General Fund - Street Department - $9,834
Park Improvement Fund - Capital Outlay - $32,108

Budgetary Accounting
The annval operating budgets of the General Fund are prepared and presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting for
revenues and on the cash basis for expenditures, excluding internal service account activity of the General Fund.

The City utilizes encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of
funds are recorded in order to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. The City considers all appropriations to lapse at
year-end; any open purchase orders to be honored in the subsequent budget year are reappropriated in the subsequent year’s
budget. As a result, encumbrances are not treated as the equivalent of expenditures in the budget and actual financial statements.
However, as discussed in Note 4.C., the Economic Development Incentive Agreement required that the City encumber funds
related to the payment of the incentive at the time the agreement was approved and that the outstanding balance of the
encumbrance remain outstanding for the life of the agreement. The city encumbered the funds in fiscal year 2007 and $352,000 of
the encumbrance remains outstanding.

64



City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Required Supplementary Information

June 30, 2012

Required Supplementary Information — OPEB

The funded status and funding progress of the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan for the most recent actuarial valuations is as

follows:
July 1, 2009

Actuarial accrued liability - AAL (a) $594,047
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability - UAAL

(funding excess) (a) — (b) $594,047
Funded ratio (b)/(a) 0%
Covered payroll (c) $3,224,000
UAAL (funding excess) as a % of covered 18%

payrall [UAAL/(c)]
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July 1, 2010

$662,459

$662,459

0%
$3,400,500

19%

July 1, 2011

$479.365

$479,365

0%
$3,577,000

13%



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the GASB,
nor are a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

Such statements and schedules include:

»  Combining Schedules — General Fund Accounts

v Budgetary Comparison Schedules — General Fund Accounts

*  Combining Schedules — Non-major governmental funds

*  Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Nonmajor Governmental Funds
*  Budgetary Comparison Schedules — Major Capital Project Funds

*  Combining Schedules — Enterprise Fund Accounts

= Schedule of Federal Awards

s Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage
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Reverues:
nierpevernmenial
Fines and [orfeilures
License and parmils
nvestmenl incoma
Miscallaneous

Tolal Reverues

Experditres:
Current:
Public salety
Caplial oullay
Debl service

Total Expenditures

Rewenuas over {under) axpendiliras

Qlher Financing Sources (Uses).

Translers in

Total Other Financing Soutes (Uses)

Revenues and other sowrces over (under}
expenditures and other uses

Fund Batanga - beginnng of year

Fund Batange - end of year

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SPECIAL REVENUE - TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT FUND

Yariance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budgel

Originel Final Amaounts Positive (Negalive)
$10,300 $10,300 58,930 ($1,270)
= - 74 T4
10,300 10,300 9,004 {1,296)
10,300 10,300 9.638 662
10,300 10,300 8,638 662
. - (634) (634)
o - (634) (634)
13,670 13,670 15,261 1,591
13,670 13,670 $14,627 5957
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

SPECIAL REVENUE - PARK IMPROVEMENT

BPECIAL REVENUE - STREET IMPRCYEMENT FUND

Varlance with VYarianca with
Budgelsd Amounis Actusl Final Budget B, d Amourts Actual Final Budgat
Originat Final Amounts Poabiive (Negative) Original Finai Amounts Foaltive (Negjativa}
Reovanusa
Finea and lorfeitues. $35,000 $35.000 $35.715 718 . - - o
Licorse and permits 9,000 9.800 7.250 {2.550) o - o o
Invetment income: 700 700 498 [20d) $a.z00 $0,200 A6 (§1.707)
Mizceleneous - - 53402 53402 - - 1875 1675
‘Total Ruvoruma 44,700 45,500 Poass 51383 8,200 8,200 8,388 108
Exparditres
Gararl
Public salety . . . . . . . .
Capital outay 0.000 30678 88,784 (32.108) 573,001 885 450 127,488 557.942
Dobd sarvce . f + . . B o -
Teal Expenditures 9,000 38,878 8,768 2,108 573,001 885 410 127 488 557942
A aver (under) expemd 35700 aa2 28,077 10,255 (568,801) (870,210) {121,300} 558.110
Other Finemzing Souces {Uses)y
Thambar . . - . 437,510 437510 558,812 110,102
Totel Ottwr Firsincing Sources (Usea) . - - - 437 510 437 510 556,812 110,102
Revernes snd other souces over (urder)
expordiuns ard cther uaes. 35 T00 8.2z 28077 10255 (120381} (241.700) 435512 arr .2z
Furd Baimrce - begining ol year 5,000 85,000 08741 23,741 00,000 500,000 TRE2e 173828
Furd Balincg - and of year 3100700 373,822 3128818 £62.008 {09,381} $358,300 $1.200.340 $851.040
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Reweniss
Taes
Inergovemmental
Fines ard lorfeiures
Imestment incoma
MiscelaneoLs

Tolal Revanues
Expendiiures
Current:
Public safsty
Captal outiay
Debi séruce
Total Expendturns
Ravenues over (under) experdiires
Other Firantirg Soumes (Uses)
Copulal lesss proceeds
Transfers in
Total Other Firancing Sowrces (Uses)

Revenues and ather sowrces over [inier)
expenditures and cter uses

Fund Batarge - begiming of year

Fund Batance - end of year

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA

BUDGETARY COMPARLION SCHEDULE
NONMAJDR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE X0, 2012

DEBT SERVICE FUND

CAPITAL PROJECT ~ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Varisnce with Variance whh
Budpetad Amounls Actual Final Budget Budgeled Amourts Actual Final Budgeal
Driglnal Final Amounts Ponktive (Nagailva) Original Final Amounis Posliive {Nog athvd)
3206 425 $208.425 5202157 {56,266} . . o S
o o = - 4,000 $4.000 $5 666 §1,666
208425 208,425 202157 [6,268) 4,000 4,000 5666 1,666
. - - . 1,560,540 945313 274,335 £70.978
248300 243,300 24B.686 614 . 69,227 £89.227 -
249,300 245 300 248, E14 1,560,540 1.014 540 343562 870,978
40,875) {40.875) {46.529) (5654 (1.586,540) (1,010,540} (337.896) 672,644
o . - - - 142.219 143218
- - - - 651,200 691200 860,690 163490
- - - - 551,200 691,200 1,023 908 32709
{40875} {40,875) (46.529) (5.654) (895,340} (319,340) 666,013 1.005.353
110.920 116.920 60.485 (50.434) B95.340 895340 B2G977 (64.363)
$70.045 570,045 $13.957 (§56,088) - 576,000 $1512.990 $936.990_
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Havenuer
Investmen! incoma

Tolal Reverues
Expendiures
Current
Adminislesion
Tolsl Expercdilures

Ravenuea over {undar} axpendilures

Othar Financeg Sowces {Lisas)
Bord precasds

Tolal Other Financing Sourcss (Uaes)

Ravenuet and vlher sources over {under)
wxpendilues and olher uses

Fund Belance - beginnmg of year

Fund Balance - and of yasr

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHCMA,
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MAIOK CAPITAL PROJECT FUND3
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3, 2012

2012 GO Bond - Balflalds

2012 GO Bond - Town Canler

Varlance wilh Varlancs wilh

Budpeled Amounis Aclual Final Budgel Budgeted Amounis Aclual Final Budgel
Original Final A Poulilve (Negative) Original Flnni Amounls P osllive (Nagalive}
- - $3n $311 - - $412 412
- - an 3 - 412 412

- $23.650 23.650 - $31.280 31.280 -

- 23 650 23,650 = - 31,280 31,280 -
. {23,650) {23,335) 3an - {31.280) ({30,868} 412

- .550.000 4.550.000 - - 2,050,000 2,050,000 -

- 1,550,000 1,850,000 - - 2,050,000 2 050,000 -
- 1.526.350 1.526.661 an - 2,018,720 2019132 412
- $1.526 350 31 526.661 $311 = §2,018.720 52,019,132 $412
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City of Musiang

Siaismant of Nel Assets
C infng S e of A of tha MIA
Juna 30, 2012
Mustang Total Mustang
Improvemant 2008 Ravanue MIA Resarve 1888 Ravenus Sawar Impact Improvement
Authority Bond Fund Fund Bond Funid Fund iillty Deposiie Authority
ASSETS
Curren! assats
Cush and cash squivalenis -] 887,542 3 o 5 46.362 ¥ o k] 391,244 = S 1425148
Reatnclad cash and cash equivalenis . 1,965,024 - 530413 - 31.002 2,527,339
Invesiments 719,630 . 5 - 690.461 - 1,410,001
Restriciad nvestments - 760,346 - - - 76062 1.036.408
Accounts receivable, nel 1,005.187 - - . - - 1,005.187
Dus from other lunds 1,464 S - 0 . o 1464
Due from other governments 8142 - - . . . 8142
Other recevabls 21,819 . - - - - 21,019
Invenlory 24,797 D - - - - 24,797
Tolal curren] assets 2,768 681 2726270 46 362 530,413 1,081,705 307,064 7460495
Non-cirent assets
Land and construclion in progress 481,776 - - - . - 481,776
Other capial assels, nat of depreciation 24.610.217 - - - - . 24 810,217
Unamartized bond 148U costs 118,771 339 462 . 179,743 - - 837,976
Tolal nor-currend assets 25210764 329,462 - 179,743 - - 25,720,069
Tolal assels 27,979 445 3065732 46,382 710,156 1,081,705 307 064 33,180,464
LIABILITIES
Currenl liabdites.
Accounts payablg 228700 - - . 33.025 - 261,725
Claims payable - - - . - - -
Due to other hunds . N - - . . -
Acerved inlgrest payable - 104,280 - 30921 - . 135,201
Refundavle deposns 880 - - - - 30618 31,488
Noles payablg, curran poriion 329 500 o . o o - 329,500
Revenue bonds payable. curent porlon - 1,055 000 - BES5,000 - - 1,920,000
Talat currant katnles 559,080 1,159,280 - 895921 33028 3061 2677524
Norrcurrent liabihilies
Deposiis subject to refund - - - - . 375.562 275,562
Reverwa bonds payable. nal . 1073977 . 5 203,096 - . 16,277.073
Noles payeble 3410203 - - . - - 3,410,263
Tolal non-curment liabilhes 3410293 11,073 8977 - 5203 096 - 275562 19,962 928
Tolsl habiiles 3969373 12,233 257 - 6,099,017 33,025 306,180 22 640 852
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of refaled debl 18,991,992 - - {6.069.079) - - 129228913
Restricied for debl senace 5 2622070 - 499492 . 3,121.562
Unrastricied 5,018,080 {11,769 595) 46 382 180,726 1,048 680 B84 (5,494 BEI)
Tolal ned assats 5 24 010 072 5 (9167, 525! 5 46 SGZF 5 (5 388, 861! 3 1,048 680 5 & 3 10548 61-2:
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City of Mustang
Sistement of Revenues, Expenses znd Changes In Net Assals
[+ I lo of A of Lve MLA
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Musisng Toied Muslang
Improvement 2008 Revenus MIA Reserve 1008 Revenue Sewer lmpact Improvement
Authority Bond Fund Fund Band Fund Fund Utk Authority
REVENUES
Chargea for Servica
Water chargus $ 2,858,000 5 . $ - 3 - H $ = 3 2,550 000
Sewar chages 1,503,887 . - - - 1,563,887
Ins{afuisons and connedmons 42,085 - . N . 42,005
Ponallizs 123,018 - - - - 123,018
Saniislon charges 2,125.281 . - - - - 125201
Amblience assessment 248,030 - - . . - 248,009
Sower xmpaci [eas - - - - 44,215 - 44275
Odhar 47,380 - - 47,380
Tolal operming revénues 7,009,280 . - - 44 275 . 7,053 844
OPERATING EXPENSES
Coxt of gooda sold £21,013 - - - 5 . 521.013
Oporalions and meshlenance 2,645,555 123 . - - - 2,645,878
Depraciaton axpense 052,358 - . . . . 052,358
Amorizslon axpansa T.021 3.5 . 33,184 .- . 70.004
‘Tolsl opersiing sxpomses A325 947 38 822 - 33,184 - - 4,395 043
Oparalmg incoma (los8) 2,083 422 {38 822} - {23,154} 44,275 - 2,057 801
NON-OPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)
Imvasimen income 11,607 Q162 (188 55 Taz2 838 26,840
Miscellaneos [618] . . - - a8 (570}
inlacesi exponss ard fiscal charges (8.500} (732.472) . (334 .478) {112.041) - (1,185,490}
Tolad non-opersing revenus { 4469 {22760 (ie8) [334.423) (104727) 7] (57223}
Net incoma (iosa) bafore 2,087 911 {780,102 (188 {387, 807) (B0 452, 884 1,500,488
‘Tranafsi in - inleracoourd. 835037 1,948 520 1z.71e 1,173,344 205,000 - 3074901
Transfors out - inleracoount {3,525,723) - - [185.278) {203 800) . {3.074.801)
Tranaisy th 1,788,814 - - . - - 7.708.874
Transiers oul {0.224,6580) - - (£.224.800)
Changs in nel sssate [628,087) 1188418 12 544 820 440 (119,062} 854 1,074 258
Tode! nel axsals - baginrung. resisied 24 829,050 {10.355,943) f<X.11] (6.008,31G) 1.147.732 . 0,475,350
Tolal nel sasots - sreling 3 24.016.072 ] [(] IU?’,S?S! 3 40 302 3 5 388%1! 3 1,048 880 3 BE4 ] 10.540.012
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recoyp B cuswomnen

Paytoculs 10 supphas

Receiple of cusiamier meter deposits

Cossenser rmover deposts refunded or spplied
Paymesit 10 other funds

Reveipts fom othe funds

Net Cash Proveied by (Usad i) Operaiiing Acuvtlies

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

COMBINING SCHEDULE ACCOUNTS OF THE MIA

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ACCOUNTS OF THEMIA

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers ot pihar funds - itersccount

Transfers 10 other Arnds « mierscToumm

Tranyfers frion gther funds

Transfers to otber firods

Priovipal pasd on non-capital debi

Interes xbd fiscal agend Foct pasd on pon-capnal detn

Nt Cash Provaded by (Used m) Nopcaprial mnd Relaiod Frnamemg Acuvnes

CASH FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases ol capital maseis
Principa) paid on capital debt
Inerest and fiscal agesu foes parl oo ceprial detn
Net Cash Provaded by {Used m) Capural and Related Fooancing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sakc (Purchase) of mveslowents
Intcrest aod divadends

Nei Cash Provadad by (Used i) hiveiting Activities
N Increase { Decrease) an Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances - begmmimyg of the year
Balokces - oxd of the year

Reconcllation 1p Siatement of Net Asstia:
Casb and canh expuivalents
Hestnoted cash and cash oquvalents
Total cash und cash equivalenis

Recondiligilon of operatlog Intome {loxs) fo ael earb provided
by operating activitles:
Operaimg income (loat)
AdjutIEnTs 10 TLODCHE OPSTAINE meenie 10 0o cath mrovaded
(used) by pporslng Kirviue
Deprmtutmn expeaic
ABRIuLMIOD eXpearae
Oibar son-opaaimg revawey
Chusge in xsaets wnd Labilies:
Receivables, oot
D fonin otbor funds
Other rocavabie
Accounis payables
Customer nicier depoans payablc
Due tn otber fumds

Net Cath Provaded by (Usad in) Opeziing Aciivines

MUSTANG
IMPROVEMENT 1999 AND 2006 MIA 1998 REVENUE SEWER UTILITY
AUTHORITY (MIA) _ BOND FUND _ RESERVEFUND _BOND FUND  JMPACTFUND _DEPOSITS TOTALS
56,092,439 43 o $44,278 S48 6,916,407
[1,279,068) 5 o E - 13,279.191)
N - - 62,400 G2 A0
o - a o (39,474) (39,474)
(27,000K) E (516,895) a 0.99%) (45.898)
5417 - . a - . 5,417
3,591,780 (7%) (16,895) o 44,275 919 2,620,061
635,017 1,948,520 12710 LIT,334 205,000 o 1,974,600
525,720 - (1%3,278) (263,600) . (397,600
T,798,6M . o g a 7,798,674
[§,224,306) . c o 18,224,886)
o {1,1H5,000) o - (1,015,000
(644,712) . - 1644,712)
{3.116,898) 284,808 12,710 YRR, 056 (S5, 6iK)) - (2,085.924)
005.459) . . o . (18,485}
(263,600) . (820,000) . - [1L08,600)
(6300 . {130,741 112,170} 2 449411}
(285 ,585) o [L,150,741) {112.170) . (1,348,500)
90,424 LRI (2421 12,600 R7H91
12,458 9,193 5 7322 kit 29,860
162875 gy 54 1 14436 117,753
92,1712 9,113 (4.1K5) (162,631 (126.494) 15.415 103,390
95,7711 1,676,711 501,847 693,144 517718 13,587 1,845,997
1987542 51,965,624 346,362 3530413 $391.744 §11,002 $,952,387
$987,542 o 546,361 E $191,244 . $1.425.148
2 1,965,524 . 5530413 o 531,002 3,527,239
1937,542 $1,965,624 546,362 §510413 5191244 511,002 33952307
$1.681,422 (536,622) . ($3.164) §44,275 5 $2,657,691
933,39 - . . o 952358
7.021 36,699 11,184 o 76904
(618} . . o 548 1570}
{94,353} a8 . {94,148)
417 a o 5417
121,919) . g 21919}
7,300 . o 52,500
o 292 2826
(27,008) (J6,695) o [L99%) (45,898)
31,591,780 [378) (316,693} $44,275 5979 $2.620,061
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATEAWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal/Siste Grantor/Pass Through Agency Federal Contract Contract

Grantor/Program Title CFDAR Granl ¥ Amount Expenditures

FEDERAL AWARDS:

LLS. DEP, MENT O MELAND S ITY.

Non Profil Security Program 97.008 150017 $5,235 35,235
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 55,235 $5,235
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Gross Revenue Available for Debt Service:
Operating revenues (3)
Interest revenues
Sales tax revenues (2)
Total Gross Revenues Available

Authority Operating Expenses (1)

Net Revenues Available for Debt Service

Average Annual Debt Service Requirements for Term:
06 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds
98 A Refunding Revenue Bonds
98 B Refunding Revenue Bonds
OWRB Loan

Total average annual Debt Service
Computed Coverage
Coverage Requirement - Revenue Bond Indenture
(1) Excludes amortization and depreciation.
(2) Includes entire amount pledged, MIA only retains two-cents.

(3} Operating revenues of the system per the bond indenture only include water
and sanitary sewer charges.

80

$4,545,703
28,846
7,794,576

$12,369,125

2,127,447

310,241,678

$1,65%,713
1,038,138
112,603
355,809

$3,166,263

3.23

1.25
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statistical Section
June 30, 2012

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Mustang’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says
about the city’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time. (Table 1-4)

Revenue Capacity — These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city’s most significant local revenue sources,
property tax and sales tax. (Table 5-11)

Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the city’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. (Table 12-16)

Demographic and Economic Information — These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the city’s financial activities take place. (Table 17-18)

Operating Information -- These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information
in the city’s financial report relates to the services the city provides and the activities it performs. (Table 19-21)

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant years and data
maintained by each department of the city, ‘The Cily implemenied GASB Statement 34 in Fiscal year 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information
include information beginning in that year.

83



Tead 0] 294 Wy QISe U v 69Buryd 10) Z aige) 985 (5]
LLOZ Ad W ¥S BEY0 paluawsid Alg sty (7)
Bunundaoe 10 S18eY [eTUae ey) SUist umoys §) mpeyss sy (1)

F¥ESHZ 6! § Z0LE990Z § GEACIUEL § BEHTLYEZ § 09G'SSS0E  § GG6¥BIBZE 0§ ZZEEGPPE  § BEFZOZET S LMEKSION S PIPBIFLF ¢ {£) 1938y 16N WRWURADD Aeumg 0]

B ZFE Z SHIDLLE 9L OEIE LZEOZL L 8Z0'60Z L AL CS0T86 8 Z08'1156 ZEPZIE L 19F 8L paDEN
006'ZFE [R5 4T 600125 CRIBE TCI'ZLE ISFEKS . G - - sasodind Jawg
LG50 626 BEr'Y LZFELL'Y MEO9I'L PrR'9S1'Z BLGLT EEHTE ¥EF 160 € IS 1920
[ 13 9ZLBYE 1ZE'LYE - - - . . - - seaNg
o O O a o o & GLL'LED' 68Z'96L'8 SIBYUST BRI T
- - - - - - COS'EEZE cle'es uonesiba) Burqeul
- - - - 5] o sjuswazanbas Lcinjels

0] pAIRRY

0LEBETPL 185 BZL P S00°259°L1 PHLGIE 61 BI0'ISZ'0Z TZ0'0L91Z LUE'S0E'TT £6E'669'92 L£8'910'62 GPA'SOE ST ("D € 910N 295)1090 PRINSY )0 19N 'SIRESY [B1IKRD Ul palsIau|

UGUNLIBARS AWl

BOLSEL DL COTENE 1L FISZROZL AT IF'1YS BLFEIF L SBZ TES ¥ 96095 g v86'L0P'G LEFFLFOL SIFSEY 19N FHPARGY HA)-SsamEg (210 ]

CI0TIE] BZU'B0E'Z ESATA T (P19 0EYZ1} 12057896 11) (z8E 260" 11} ({zreea’s) [EEEN3 (E90'665°CH OISR
LEL'E0L 095919 B08'L5L £81'v89 BEL IS LIZ'L9E'T LP0arL'E SBZLZL'E IBE1ZL'E TI'IZLE SMARS 1090

J0] papuIsay

ZrPOzs'L S5E°51E°8 aLrEeo's £05°665 01 ELO'LZV 1L OrLPZI0ZL 909'18SZ} 6L GL B0pLY §I ZBE'LEE'ZL 1980 paley 10 1N 'Saesy [e1ide ul paTERAL)

SAAPY wA-sseuEng

KIGZLE BCYOIPE [CINT7TY BOA P YL EELEIDOE 91055 0F 20719062 EELZPO O ISHORZ b ZEODLLIT HFEY 19N SIMTY RINFURLBACD 101

Y Ot 25018 1 LIOSPE | YaIsiky GOEGEE Z BFZ LFOE ZISYBLE 69068 € PLIEIDE YoYGEL | polosauny
006°2rE 183'59r 600125 £69'60¢ ZE9'Ze6 25F'6r8 o o = = Sos0dnd Jano
095 °ESL Ere'1z0 BLOGIO'L 126186 951 S0 158'22r 11E'961 6EL ¥aE 9MaS 1090
GFEEZP 9Zegr2 LZEIRE - D e o o o - [SEEF -]
- - - - D g 51LLZ0 ) LZL P0G SI2RYUOD JHUIXT
- [41 %441 G808 uoneisiBe; Bupqeun
- - L] - sjuswannba Lanels

14a) 10} pajomeay

B2E6LLL § 9zLEry $ 5650199 § WwZie § O¥EOPFOZ F D3L9EXFOZ S PPLDIGSZ S SIEISE9Z 8 BLVBLZSE $ SLEZSE'SZ H 1090 PEIBEY J0 13N ‘}I3ESY (€108 W pajEaa)

SSUUADY FILBULINADG

worduaseqg

00z ¥eoz S0 114 ¥ [ 1t B06E [ 1T iz
PN LELTE {
SHVAA TYISId N3L ASYT
18Ikl ANINOJWOD AB S13S8Y LIN

YAOHYINO 'ONVYLSNW 40 ALID 3HL

ZL0Z ‘0¢ eunp
uojjosg [eaysilels
swoyep ‘Bueysnyy 10 A0

84



——

0Z6'8HL OSZTBLLL ezz'zar'a

TEor8 L

pLH020'0L PLL'LIEL G9G'BLE°L B99'510°t) DIE'EES'R BIR'CEEE senueas untiax wwiwanol Amwpd @io)
188'609'F 220 OLE'S BEL'TOE'S ZZH028'0 LLO'LOFS 166'818'5 SUE'RKS'S 260'B50°8 CLLEIS'D BYZ kLD senuanas weifiod s se edArsseusng Eop
9r6'aes [T 188'tz8 ZPPELP'L SZZ'E06 £20°205 9re'sZe g - - SUCNGEICD) pUB ElEIS) BUdED
- - - - - - - 000°000°Z - - 5 D pue SuEig) Bumesdd
- - 199’86 252201 TZT'L0L wOG0L L 01E°FLL Z09'5LL NZ'EGL BEC'EBYEZ eaUEnqury
BEL'2GZ1 vB2'HEE' s £B9'9EE"L CEB'GrYL 180" PN L 51'RES £62°1€9' BTL'IZ6'L ZLP'SI0'T ZLEERLZ SuONERdo S1SEM PIOS
S05°950°1 E20'S0Z'4 196082 GLE'GLE'L LY sIeL EFBEF"T SEORIEL 291°6825'L L1108 Z5E'099°L SUOaRdo JAIEMSISE AL
Z62'796"1 ZEVHED'S BIS'ELE"M LTE'EHE'T 160°188'1 £09'520'C TOC'EOZ'T BIE'TERT BOP'LEL'Z. 90Z'IHE'Z SuDiiEsRdo JNa M
‘Sefwidy edil-asausng
BECOPPZ  BEGLPET OEFPALE Z56'BFF'E E0L0L'E L9E'BEZT 668'0E0°Z LiL'BGA'E LrZ'0ZLE BB5"LE6"1 sanmana umibiad s3I PRkl o)
L¥a'L18 [T 110'285"1 [F15:T80 GAL'SLY 0ES'BrY BSL°59E [ g 669067 ZOF'ES SUDNNQUILED) PUR BIURIS) (ANt
BLP'PSE 00L°582 LBE'EZ SEa'ZLE 880'18Z VLT BEZF 19K [T s 199'865 Z05'098 suotinquiue] pue sluesg Buremdg
eaa'riz 9e0'661 061°¥rZ V5T EO6°EBT SLT'LLT G1E'6LZ ¥54'252 SZ0°06¢ PLOLLE Aams agng
8g4'50€ FO0'B5E PE9'IEE 959°16C VEL'Z0E 109°08Z ¥} BEL'SOL 834 ] YZH'GLL Wawdopaaq Anmuue
8z9'128 B0 8T 1I§'8EL FLIN | 586'E08 £FE'1BE 140'008 ¥00'89L S11'684 LEL70E8 UDREAIIR PUB BN
VES'LT €62'E 186'H)L SES'E BELLT LyH'GL BO9 o . - uopenswjupy
SRINRS Xy selmyD
"SB{HANOY [RIIBUNLIBADE)
sonusany werbolg
OPE'DEG'IL  0B9'RPEZL  OEVIZLZL  RIS'OIEEL BET'RZLEL BG5'Z0E'Y1 CZE'E0L'SL BEG'99Z'SY 125802 6L 065°Z8g'0t SREnd:Q o Amwpd o)
BOO'EO0'E  GEFZOPE $01°28G°'C 108'5.0'E [T VEZ'ZFE'S Bol'prl'S EZB'0L0S QL2680 ZSPLBSS S95URdYR SaNN}98 RUAT-SEAUISHY IO
e E D S wEars oEE 058 [TT3T] £58°108 B0 008 065'0:8 196 [ uuRnot Jof 190p uR)-5uD] ReU UO (RS
o - o0e'se LN ] 09.'e8 oro'rs 098501 9%56'78 BZb'arl BOL1LOZ Iy
BZT L9k BGL'ILS 04.'919 SZ8'E09 €IP'ERL £EP D06 ¥oR'L28 69E'L16 901220 T00'eE0’t swoneRdo aysEw prog
LEL'B50") 0E0'9L0’L PLB'ECO'L 084501 098'SPL'L BPI'FLP'L DB B8 RZYEZL') GEL'SLZY GR0'0LL'L SIERAD JHEMITM,
6AP'LES'1 LY9'6876°) 162'158'L 1BE'ES8'L PLZ YOO £84'780'T IBP'ERLT i ISEEIZ'E Cr'Loe'T FUO([Brade e
-SRI bdALsduiEng
2’9958 FbZ vBL 6 GEZ eS8 ELG'PEQ'S LEG 4228 Z9E"00R'8 1SVBSE'E GL1'G52°01 272 '0:8°0) BELLOEL SRt salvize Elssuwaod ma)
22601 8rBes0t yL8PEQ'L 0ET'226 09092 oig'ap 08528 842'EE BEZT'6L LpA'EL WP uus -] o s
ZHP'BOE'L YZL'ERS'1 BLL'BLE BIS"GPy Zr5'1ET 609225 88905 040068 VER'Ere SSh1EL abeuriq pue TRang
£Za'vEE'T LPS'PSSE TTZ'S08'2 S'EZE'Z zs9'080'e 950"L6E'E B0L'BEE'E EZO'ELT'Y TP ISP LEGBRL'Y Alales g
ZES'B5E rLO'16¢ B58'80F 5068568 151'96¢ oa'LLy s 1 50G'ZRE PLY'20P Z96'0ty R uioag Aunwwor
19Z'9LZ"1 9ea'Zra"L ZrrERS'E GEA'GZR'L 2G1°E1L7L S6O'E06°1 Friy::nl L6E'$90'Z BLLIAY'E T9F8ZE'T UOIFRRIIA M NG
L6VBIL'ZS  1BO'BBBIS  0ZE'GLZEZS  ISLLZETS 028'ELY TS LBZEISTS 156°188°28 erE'LI6'ZS 9EZ'BOL'ES SI0'9E0'ES uoiRslSuwpy
SHINIDY [BGUNLIRMDS)
{z) smsundiy
£00Z 00z 500Z 002 L00Z [T BOOZ oLoz [T THZ
LN =F]
zjo | sbed SHYIA T¥DSId N3L LSVT
Zo|qel S13SSY 13N NI STONYHD

VWOHVYTMO "ONVLSNIN 40 ALID HL

ZLoZ ‘og eunyp
uolosg fedisnels
ewoyepio ‘Buelsnpy jo Ao

85



@) IsN pue wey $3|es Buisearau) "Burisny ) paleso) Jo|El Jojew & 'pO0z ek |asy Buung ()

‘sigad payrodal sop saJuB(eq 1PSSE JeU Buipus x4 | Bi98) 89S {p)
“sanues) musuell Jaglo pus 523 way Bupuny vodn eoump

sl snslan slueiB ogiaeds-waiBaid pUB £34) UMD S Y P 5] Bosd Jo uBTY B LDiym o)
2a6ap o] SITEMPU| || *SanUMAl weBaid pue sosuRdXe Y] LIAMIEK VUKD Sl § {secundxa) 1N (£)

"@EL XD 133IIpU) PRIBDONE PN aU sasuedi] (g}

-Bunumonde jo sseq [enooe e Buign spodas egnpayos syl {1)

GIE'SZE'GS  GSEERELS ZZOPBZES  ECLGYAWS EEL'BEE’LS SLBZZEZS EPGLES'LS 602604 PS ZIZTEP LS 9Z8'CES LS (P} wswurason Aeuiid 19104
vaz'Les 985 L0L°L LIE'6ER S19°SP1L'Z FEEBOL L SR 9168'802°2 AT BEY L8 SGZRLOTL soymIYy eddrseauisng
LS0'PEE'S  £08°082Z LIe'szZr'e BFFE0S'2 56629 [>T atud (e:z'eL8) 801182 vZL'r09 0.5°65F SEIANDY RUGURLAOD
S)esSy 19N up sBueyy
EVEDZE'Y QLI 9IE'S 929'868°9 £26'886°3 LB5'Z09'L £S0°6/9'0 L0+ 08L'E BIE'096'8 ELE°29670 BES'0LE6 Waunuaog Aswig [910)
(T3] {1e€"008) {052'948) {98664 £96°608 541'909'L 916'F00') Z86'6LE {ava'zzg) Tirsest) sofipnoy edi-ssawsng (8301
[0z8'190'1} (251 9v8) T1Ev"068] [ETGET)] 200'049 066'051°} LTI 620°408 Tbic'e8e) {Zreaew) AWy [ewsiu) - Smysue))
p62'C 1£8'02 ®LGL 115'8 138 r4 0689 SBE'DZ [¥1y:13 £90'PL erae SNOUR|RISIN
LILEL ¥B6'PZ BOV'eE BL9PY 599801 ELFEZL 50622, 7e8'eg 199'9F ore'sz SWOMN JAWN S
- - - - - ZBP'EET 0S0'PE = o - NLRAR) [BTudunuanolsagu)
SNy odAFSSRISRG
Z60S08'C  BOLEILLL 8LY'GLLE BOE'@B9'L 629°06/4™0 BLZ 0L e gb¥'0B0'B BLZ'GE2'E BEV'BIE6 SRNWIDY |SUIWIEMOG RIa)
028°190"t 261798 1Er' 086 QU5'ESH [T {066°0G1° 1) (2L2'ZL9°1) (620°£08) F29'BAE ZLT'9er AWIDY WL - Saysuesf,
£55'88 YEE'BEL BBL'SYZ [18.0'%4 LBS'ET S95°2E 0.E'08 664'80L LEP'3E1 L9l SIODUB(IEDS|Y
1z'es wLor £er'Lg 0L0°2L 969'G6 020°GEL 199'6L BY9'8E €E9'8E £182z BLIODL) WU S|
pZA'SSE £450VE 8LL'E9E SE9'AZZ 080'€SZ LOE'96F BSP"LLE 10'59E 0OF'ES1 1ES'BLL SNUMES |ETUBLLIROR g U]
[%4: 44 105G 8BS al1's [0 PPa'L S8LL 060°L vZo'L 181’9 sxel LIEg
LB0'68E Frra: o4 0L 'OFr YRE'PES 590'£ES §9E'CLS 8EL'119 arl'Lig 950' 58 0247206 YD) BOPIAS DHGND Pud AERPUEL
£95'628'E 121'082's BEF Q'S PLVLLE'S BLL'OVS™ L98'2L6'9 PR'898'L 19L'0zLL 150" L8 ¥55'660'8 {§) sax@) 93 pue sajeg
ISEREL
SOANDY [USUALIBAD
SIEESY 18N u) $8BURYS JBUID PUR BENUBARY |RIAUDG
loev0esv)_ (0Zveza vy (WOZ PL0e) VOB 6Eee) PP P10 S Tecz ase s less res &) 1600°152 b} {(EYAT] (2l 9E6 L) (sasuadxz) joN WewALEAOE AIBWKS [E10L
EL0'9PEL 988'L06"! 109764271 L9°SPE'C DLE 205 JEIN7E 00€" 0¥ 692'8F0E PEE'SLLL LBL'ZEV L seipoy adiysseusng
(e€p'021'08)  (00€'0£0'8S) (SOB'BYE'SS)  (198°kAL'SS) (rfe'ar17as) {$66'0£9°98) (es8°026'23) (BEE'662°LS) (S6r"069'88) {895°69€'65) SeIIIY BIUBLILIBAD
{c) swnusasy (sesusdxg) 1oy
£00Z 002 S00Z 9002 1002 8002 600Z 0402 [T zL0Z
JuDj |e3S4
zjaz ebed SHVYIA TYISIA NIL 1SV
Z 9jqe

$13SSVY L3N NI SADNVHO
YACHVIHO 'ONVLSNIN 40 ALD IHL

ZL0Z ‘o€ eunp
uonoag jeansnes
BLLOyEpO ‘Bue)smy Jo A0

86



LL0Z Jeak |easy ul ‘Burpiode eaueeq pury 'vg ASYD pajuewadw Al syl (g)
123k 0] Jead way sooueieq puny up Sabueyd Ky v ayge) Bag (Z)
‘Bununoaoe jo siseq feruase payipow sy Bujsn spoda) anpayas syl (B

SpUNJ [RILSLIWSNAS) |BI0L

SPUNY |BUBWLLIENOS JaY]0) (810
spury 1oe{aud jRNdeD
pung a3nas 106Q
Spury enuanau |gjaads
| peyodar ‘pauasanin
pauBisseunpauasann
B3RS 1630
sweifiod oyinadg
SIMENIWINIUT
-oj pandasey
paubissy
pajauIsey
[SpUNng |EJUSWILLIBAOS) JBYI0

Pun4 |elouas) |=jo)
paub|sseunpavasann
BOUBRIQWNIUT
a8ipag 1qag
saojuanuy|
SBUASQY pAJESuado) paruady
apqeded sjomjuo)
swesboid ayivadg
S8OURILINDUT
wawebeuvey ysiy
Xy pauasay
paubyssy
pausey
BjqepusdsuonN
‘pung |eiBUEg

BEL'ZEEYS PEV'YGR'PS  96E'LOOY EE6L'ZIZ'Y  GRO'IZO'S  OZB'ICT'S €S0'[BG'E LEI'EEG'E SIO'EED'S G¥8°068'6
BL9'668'2  LOL'LAL'E  9G/'0BLZ S5LL9E6'L  BI9'9EZ'Z  PBGCIET ZPB'E6T L ELZ'1BP'L Z6T'GLLL GZS'EEr'e
60Z'FG 9zZ8'es ZLG LK §i8'68 666'0L 688°LG Z60'00Z 6E8'0rZ = -
I65'66%'L  EFZ'OL LLL'RL VeZ'9LE 6rLLLE E£4'980°L 6bF'1LO9 EFL'SLE - -
ZIS'6LL £ = o & - S - e -
ZET'EED'L  L29'060°1 LLZ'PBRZ'L 1£8°LBE 9g9°'0eE (R rdd 668Z'E91 ISE'ZLL = S
FA N L9E'0L0'Z  Z0R'EEE'L 619°vEY ¥RE'GZO'L Lip'oRe ZrL69z 088'912 o o
o o o o - = = 9 EFL'Bba PL2LT)
- - = G o o & o 6PG'OZL’L BLE'L61L'S
OL1'EEP'L  EEC'ETL’L Op9'0E6'L VIOPIZ'E  /O0'EBLZ  G2E'S/6'Z LLLEBZZ L ZPP'Z £ZE'RST L 0ZE4GP'E
620CZL'L  BEE'GSS BBZ'SLEL 289'089°1L 0L9'092°2 661085 8GL'EE9 F8LOEL'L SLZ'EZBLE 00r'209°7
= = o : S 000'092'L 009°'80¢°L 000'950'L S =
S 6ye’1z8 o & o o = = S -
[A L K4 ¥EE'GY D0°BL gzo'el zee'sz 2621 502°Le B90'61 a 2
o o 0L'691L 0L1'68L €202 06E'EEZ 060'0E2 991'1ET = S
= o 585'vH 8856 S = - S - S
= 128'L o S - = = o = =
66Z'0LES  0L0'vZES 986’ LEES G99'€62S ZEE'E6TS Shy'LIES = o = o
= = - S o < = 2 08L'21 SEL'SLR
- o a © & - o S 915'22 pez'oL
o o 2 o o o S a 25L'6Z 1952
£00Z POOZ 5002 900Z 2002 2002 6002 0Lz ) LLoz ZHOT
JEQL |BIXS(4
go|qet

SHVIA TVOSId NIL ISY]

SANNL TYLNIWNHIAOD 'STONVIVE ANN4
VIWOHVINO 'ONVY.LSNIN 40 ALID 3HL

ZL0Z ‘o€ aunyp
uojloas [easiels

ewouepmo ‘Bueisnpy jo Ao

87



Bununaaog o SIseq RS0 PRYMalA Gu] BUIBn sucda Sinpayas srul ()

%29'L2 %IGTT %kl 02 %2202 %rlE %SZ'E %EE'S %51 € %Z5E %6
9r9'1858 S8 66S) SPICPF IS GECOLZS  (BM0RZ 1Y) GLGOMS VB6'660"1VE BZT'LvE'rE

028'100° __ Z51'01 EV'0B6 LBE'ZEE'  BBE'BEZ (06670G11)  (121°26€'t)  (620°208) PI9'ZIS BZS'ELL'P

= D SLVGLy - - -

- o {oo0'gse’9L) - a - -

. - S 000°S88'81 000’096 o 10458 o 0¥0'vZL BLZERL'E
(reozore)  (2pee00'9)  (H1E'LoRsl  (zowee'dd  dozesee's)  (Bizezo’s)  (o09'Bo0'e)  (65@'610'R) {PET'PPG'L) {o8Z"»0Z'E)
VSP'POP'y  BGGB'GKE'S  ZPOZSR'O  BLO'VELL  899'COLD BZTTAE  MOS'96E'D 0R8'ZIT'L B08'ZE6'L 085'7E9'8

(E0L'65b'T)  (908'¥82) (6av'gze'th  (BLP'ZEPF'Y)  BFO'ESL')L SZZ'I98°T  EOV'ELE BOA'EGL'L DIEL8S 00L'EL9
LIFDSE'H  L00890'B  BLISOLE  ZIZELODL  B60'8R8L 699°099°8  EBBGAPOL  GZLZAVE 919°FAL 0L LETFPI0L
0SZSLL'L  LPFRIDL 105 PFDL 080'080°L  QEE'IZ 095°6F 0re'Ly Z69°22 S IZ 190791
LVE'Z8E LIE' PP cey'ela 91L'0eL 000'502 000°602 Skz'ISk 106'552 pIG00E 650°9KE
o 2 = 2L4'695 BzL'ee - . - - -
BBS'ESZ'L  gzl'ezk ecrong'y SOS'ESD’L  B66'PiL 159678 LDE'E¥E'L [AWLT] oF1L'5E6 011L°Z95
0LL'EZL SPLZEL 061911 104" 2€1 SZ9'BLL 280181 992'eL 021°ESL UreSL KEELZ
2e@'40L'T  SSOMEZZ  159'R09' vI0'689'2  BGGBIRZ GBEZSL'E EEPERLE BL5'098'E LPL'960"F VBL'BEZ'Y
601 '€5E SIZ'ELE LBE'6EC 120'08E ER0'98E 9HTZ0F 8ZZ' 1ok 185'098 SLL09E Z0E'LIY
vEL'BBO'L  BIE'BZF'L  GBO'GEM'L SIT'E0S'L  ZBIENG'L SILL'9B9L  OR0'108L%) PL9'658'L 9ZVELL G156t
Ol'vZR'E  RPE'ZBOL  LOR'SHLY BEG'¥EE'L  ELE'SHD'Z 8B LZIT  ZEL'EBK'E BE0°LLVE IBLEIFE BrE'8ER"2
89E°16€'0  LOSTONIL  GYL'OBFE  GCLCBS'E  OFLLKLG PBE'EEO'0L  BG0'S0R'0F  ERE9LDOL E LES'BIE'LY
BSE 992 BESE2E VEL'I9E [E 16E° P61 SEL'I9L 660'B.L1 [T A 196'95¢C
129'8L LrL'OF [Tt 0L0'2e 959'CH 0Z9'SEL 199°52 899'8¢ S90S Lz
626'ELE 962'29C BSE'GEE 155 PEE LZV'OLE \ZL'E6T 620'¥91 6EL'SY 10E"IS1 000'08)
BLYELL FL'BLL 622'802 08L'SEZ 166122 [itraliire 999°RSZ SRZ'ERE PBO'LLZ 165'pOZ
z9L'919 €09°0pL 121118 SOL'¥L 9BE'BRL 1E1 P2 LES'ELL £LF 269 6P0°02L 185'99¢
Z98°LLY SPLERS 915'962 10¥'258 9BEGLE 010'58P BSE'LOL LP0'S0L 172'89L Z¥6'BIL
LIE'SZE'YS  I1E60BE'SS  ZVOULOK'OS  SEKIES'OS  SLVPBL'IS  ISKUGELS  ICR'ELLWS  EL6°186'8S 96R'1I5°BS 562'500'65
£00Z rooz s002 Booz 2002 [T]+4 [:11:7 akoz Loz ZHOE
JERL 954
Faiqe,

sanjpuadyy jeden
«uop Jo IBe1uealag B SR BIpaS 1930

seoueleq puny ul BBueyD 1aN

{sesn) swanes Bupuewy JauI0 @iy
$19558 0 B{E LINY SPFIIUY
SPUOQ JO BIBE UD wruEy
Jabe mariEd puo pepunia o) uswisd
spaanoxd puoqaseer| Eixes
Ind si3ysuery
U) SKySusly
{sen) sosine g Bupumu 4 s

Samn) |pued x0 {(BpuUnua SBnURnal j0 8530XE
sainypuedx3 [B1o),

safirya masy pum 1sa
UL jediSun g
1502 RDUBNSS| pPUOR
‘BINAE 1980

Azjino piden

abevmp pue s1ang
Aajas aknd
awdo@nap Auniuwo?
UONERIIRI PUB GMIND
UOIBASIHWIDY

quauny

sompusdxy

FNUASY 701

SOOI RIS
DUODU| JUIL) ST
Ehunad pue sasuas’
Sun|@pl; pue Sy
SPINRE Jo safeyn
[EWRwWLLBADER U
Faxe]

SenuBARY

SHY3IA TWOSId NIL 18V

SANNA WINIWNYIAO0D ‘STINVIVE ANNA NI STONVHD

VYINOHY THO ‘ONVLSNIA 40 ALID 3HL

Zi0zZ ‘ot sunp
UONoBS [RIISHEIS
ewioyepiy ‘Busisnyy jo Ao

88



City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statistical Section
June 30, 2012

THE CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table 5
Ad Alcoholic Commercial

Fiscal Valorem Sales Beverage Franchise Vehicle
Year Tax (3) Tax (2) Tax Tax Tax
2003 $321,072 $3,630,407 $34,752 $3080,887 $93,441
2004 304,583 5,130,960 35,990 436,227 93,388
2005 267,247 5,544,658 38,203 440,705 93,367
2006 92,554 5,823,816 39,480 524,324 93,367
2007 117,231 6,347,024 41,370 537,065 93,368
2008 356,140 6,767,926 44,918 573,365 93,369
2009 227,069 7,566,653 47,039 617,737 93,882
2010 214,072 7,463,894 47,188 647,140 93,882
2011 203,182 7,458,028 48,955 651,623 99,687
2012 202,157 7,876,617 66,269 703,574 119,005

Fiscal Fuel Use Telephone Tobacco

Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Totals
2003 $27,101 $175,156 54,824 - $4,676,640
2004 26,956 119,161 5,501 S 6,152,766
2005 25,652 132,780 5,484 $36,075 6,564,171
2006 27,789 144,259 5,179 90,184 6,840,952
2007 26,255 193,155 7,024 92,364 7,454,856
2008 28,222 204,941 7,544 95,249 8,171,674
2009 32,452 302,191 7,785 103,409 8,098,217
2010 33,818 256,867 7,000 104,313 8,868,264
2011 35,480 250,023 7,024 104,445 8,867,447
2012 32,326 222,937 6,487 113,262 9,342,634

(1) This schedule reporis using the modified accrual basis of accounting

(2) Effective December 1996, the sales tax rate increased from three cents to four cenls on the dollar.
In fiscal year 2004, a major reatailer located in Muslang.

{3) These revenues are reported in the Debl Senice fund. The Cily does not lew properly laxes for operations.
Property taxes are used lo senice general obligation bonds and judgments, per State Statule.
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statistical Saction
June 30, 2012

THE CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table &

Pubiic Total Tolsl Estimatad Total

Fiscal Rasl Parsonsl Service A d H laad A d Actual Milenge

_Yoar Property Proparty Proparty Valus Examplion Value Yalue Levled
2012 $108,319,823 5 5196614 § 4379240 $117,895,677 % 4.115.166 $113.780.511% $ 1129219 2.61
209 105,118,238 5433.715 4.303.920 114,856,873 4,137,166 110,719,707 106,319,101 1.94
2010 97,326,055 5,218,483 3,965.236 106.529,778 4,137,987 102,391,791 102,391,791 209
2009 89,770,263 4,033,766 4,070,577 97,874,608 4,110,498 93,764,190 98,171,023 240
2008 80,506,852 3,845,740 3,880,763 88,233,355 4,008,499 84,224 856 88,233,355 422
2007 71,006,980 3,746,635 4,155,748 768,909,363 4,125325 74,784,038 78,909,363 160
2006 65,832,914 3,117.446 4,337,485 73,287,845 3,755,332 69,532,513 73287845 1.39
2005 60,055,650 2,972,555 3.835.147 B6,B63,352 3,611,832 63,251,520 66,863,352 451
2004 53.988.542 2.007.914 3.584.871 £9,591,327 3471,000 56,1201,327 56,592,327 538
2003 49,338,012 1,810,691 3,647,737 54,757,440 3,338,593 51,458,441 54.797 440 599

(1] Propadty n iha city re raaanaased aach yaar by tha Canadisn Coonty Asssascre Cfice Tan saiss s per $1,000 of sssssssd wives
2) The source of propaty valow snk s 1he Caunly A 2 Ofice
(3) Voler aparonal e requed 1o yxireats proparly tines  Under Oklshome Sisle Sialutés & ruw pelily ¢ s enly

Hw & propedy (axes x the epayment of prncipsl end imlereat on panersd obligaion bond detd or

court sbssaned uoigmenls  Property Lixes cannol bw wsid ke operahons
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statistical Section
June 30, 2012

THE CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA,
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
{PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table 7
Debt Mustang Canadian Mustang
Fiscal Sarvice School Canadian Valley City
Year Fund District County Vo-Tech Resident
2012 2.91 65.25 16.11 15.60 99.87
2011 1.81 65.17 16.11 15.60 98.69
2010 2.09 66.47 16.11 15.60 10027
2009 240 66.96 16.11 15.60 101.07
2008 4.22 66.80 16.11 15.60 102.73
2007 1.60 67.34 16.11 15.60 100.65
2006 1.39 58.58 16.11 15.60 91.68
2005 4.51 64.40 16.11 15.60 100.62
2004 5.39 65.64 16.11 15.60 102.74
2003 5.99 65.68 16.11 15.60 103.38

Source: Canadian Counly Assessor's Office.
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statistical Section
June 30, 2012

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA.
SALES TAX RATES OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

Lasl Ton Fiscal Years Table 8
Fiscal Year
2042 2011 2010 2008 2008 2007 006 2005 2004 2003
City - Genaral Fund 3.00% 300% 3.00% 300% 300% 3.00% 3.00% 300% 3.00% 3.00%
City - Debl Sarace (2} 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 100% 1.00%

City - Street Funding (1) - - o o . . - . . R

Tolal City of Muslang A00% 4.00% 400% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 400% 4.00% 4.00% 400%
Canadian County 0.35% 0.35% Da5% 0.35% 0.35% 0.35% 035% 0.35% 035% 035%
Slalg of Oklahoma 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4 50% 4 50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4 50%
Tolal 8.85% 8 85% 4.85% 8 85% 8 B5% 8.85% 8.85% 8.85% 8 85% B.85%

(1) The \olam sppriverd 8 One-tand Askes tax slieclivn Detober 1, 1098 srd andmg Seplamber 30, 2001 jor the prposs of enlargpng
mmprondng, shd exiending 1he stredl system

{2) The wlers appivved & ote-cend atles 1ax dfacine Octobar 1. 2001 and seing Judy 31, 2030 b the purposs of peyng princpal
amd inferesl on 1he 1998 MIA Revorive Bordy wmed to ard equp & caner and library complex, pallce complex
sparim complex, ind squeix btility

{3) Tha source for sales lax w tha Cily of Mustang Arnul Frsncol Repont ard the Ohhoms Tax Commiason

(d) Sale lax 5 the matn oparaitng Lax kor ihe Clity of Musien) Usder Siate Siatites, 1ha City eannot lew 4 proparty Lax kot
oparsbons Al asled 1ax mcrassas must ba approved by 1he volans
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma

Statistical Section
June 30, 2012

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY

Last Nire Frsce! Yeara Table &
I Fiscal Year |
Calegory (2) 2012 2011 2019 2008 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003

Telecommunicalions 519,697  $409,248  $424427 8419417 5400255 $37B073  $350,145 5361,13G 3347866  $333.762
Pubfic Utlities 502,669 480,904 498,490 479,824 437,829 443,596 416,550 341,765 334,093 305,601
Wholasale Trade 256,710 324,312 303,246 337,262 302,368 165,838 136,944 180,603 152,920 167,132
Rela - Building Malenals 1,071,365 997457 990,134 1,061405 444,387 581,167 585,333 418,055 346,971 265,363
Retall - Genaral Marchandise 2,907.524 2,726,761 2715146 2826221 2727404 2548195 2,521,265 2227326 2,107,541 618,190
Relaill - Food 404,490 300,997 444 657 426,295 328,066 315487 313,301 407,631 451,152 651,431
Ralail - Avlomabve 198,607 196,283 194,382 200,178 194,892 187,603 173.2i6 183,723 161,976 135,798
Relail - Apparel 58,827 58,079 54,386 54,391 50,313 39,676 39,829 35,169 12,615 1333
Rele - Fursiure and Accassones 259,187 227,283 244,852 194,612 225,010 232,014 203,793 185,942 108,875 89,370
Ralai - Resiaunrds 1,101,462 209,813 939,483  B64,735 B35673 732623 602,884 570,883 502,267 421,924
Retail - Miscellanaous 344,418 334,246 17679 329,200 325,636 299,062 165,298 275,798 179,809 99,163
Sences - Personal 42,504 41,873 28,719 31,023 25486 21715 30,566 27,044 24610 20,693
Senvces - Business 68,141 78,338 90,055 77,509 74,361 98,161 85,834 61,089 55,685 52,798
Seruces - Aulomaolive Repaw 60,038 60,761 52,487 37.008 40,244 37,578 33,634 26,005 30,535 18,565
Amusemeni & Recreatian 4,691 321N 31,174 54,104 55,805 46,228 48,021 54,064 47,502 36330
Manufachunng 1,409 130,399 130,585 145460 240,554 176,395 186,880 168,720 147,675 76,890
Al Other Categeries 226,026 33944 75,0680 27,909 50,503 102 416 118,311 49,235 40 407 49,954
$7.927.806 $7.522878 $7532972 $7,566,653 35767926 $6412,726 36,102,805 $5574,i83 $5052,739 $3.325357

{1} nlormaton obisned bom mpone piowded by (ha Oklshomas Tax Commzamn
{2) Okimhame Siaie Sletuies protubils the Reporing of ndiidim| anlen 1ax paysre
(3] Tha mlad baze began growsng wn fisca) year 2004 with tha eparng of @ magor dapsrimant siom and mut.pl Blnp maks
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Stalistical Section
June 30, 2012

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXFAYERS
Current Yeor and Ten Yaars Ago Tabla 10

2012 ] [ 2003 ]
Parcentage of Percentaga of

Taxable Total Net Taxable Total Net

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayar a Valua {1) Valua Taxpayer Value (1} Value

QOklahoma Gas & Eleciric Company $2,193,557 1.98% Oklahoma Gas & Elecinc Company $1,803.216 37T%
Lowa's Home Centers Inc 1,481,263 1.34% Southweslem Bell Telephone 1,124,691 2.35%
Park Place Apartments 1,110,768 1.00% Park Place Apariments 923,385 1.93%
Wal-Marl Real Eslale Business 910,040 0.82% Oklahoma Nalural Gas Company 403,591 0.84%
WakMar Siores EaslLP 820,113 0.74% Muslang Manor, LLC 253,800 0.74%
Lowe's Home Centers Inc 718,288 0.65% Gary Owens Carpel & Construction, Inc. 228,220 0.62%
Oklahoma Gas & Eleclne Company 655,681 0.59% Wal-Mart Slore #517 354,817 0.55%
ATAT Mobility LLC 586,128 0.54% Sitver Shopplng Cenler 262,000 0.83%
Roman, Joseph J IR & Jay P Co 550,272 0.50%: Industrial Gaskel 297,252 0.48%
Souttwaslem Ball Telephone 420,220 0.38% McCastand, E. Lecn 212,508 0.44%
TOTAL $9.459,340 B.54% TOTAL 35,864,580 12.25%

(1) The sourte for propery walue informabon 1 the Canadian Counly Assassors Office
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
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CITY OF MUSTANG, CKLAHOMA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years Tabie 11
Total Tolal Subsequan|

Flscal Tax Tax Years Percentage
Year Levy (1) Collections Parcentage of Levy Collacilons Amount of Levy
2012 $199,397 $196,754 96 67% 55403 §202,157 101 38%
2011 207,480 153,748 74.10% 53,270 207,018 99.78%
2010 213,517 208,051 97.44% 6,021 214,072 100.26%
2009 224,890 224,422 99.79% B,182 232,614 103.43%
2008 356,141 351,817 98.79% 4,323 356,140 100.00%
2007 119,244 112,930 94.63% 4,3M 117,231 98.23%
2006 96,970 892,554 95.45% 6,206 98,760 101.85%
2005 285342 270,808 94.91% 18,692 289,500 101 46%
2004 302,993 290,753 95.86% 13,830 304,583 100 52%
2003 308,421 256,965 96.29% 14,138 311,123 100.88%

{1) From the City of Mustang Sinking Fund Eslumate of Needs for each Bacal year
Nele Tola % of lew collecied axceeds 100% due [0 the coflecton of [axes fom subsequent years
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
Statistical Section
June 306, 2012

CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEET BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Tahle 12
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES |
GENERAL JUDGMENT CAPITAL NOTE
FISCAL  OBLIGATION FUNDING COMPENS ATED LEASE PAYABLE
YEAR BONDS BONDS ABSENCES OBLIGATIONS OTC
2012 $3,600,000 . $252,793 $168.582 .
2011 240,000 - 230319 131,422 .
2010 480,000 - 231,166 67.956 .
2009 720,000 5 230,090 83.856 .
2008 960,000 210,000 232,390 .
2007 960,000 415,000 201,773 . 5
2006 . 620,000 189,110 a .
2005 175.000 825,000 168,704 $170.116 .
2004 350,000 1,030,000 166923 256,697 .
2003 525,000 1,235,000 154331 312027 $74,581

[ BUSINESS TYPEACTIVITIES

MEDA
FISCAL REVENUE REVENUE NOTE
YEAR BONDS NOTE PAYABLE
2012 $19,070,000 5361,381 53,719,793
2001 20.505,000 541,000 4,003,393
2010 22,670,000 709,261 3,258,803
2009 25,290,000 §66.266 140,419
2008 26,810,000 1,025,862 -
2007 28,215,000 1,152,238 -
2006 29,265,000 1,281,809 -
2005 29,090,000 1,403,187 -
2004 29,541,290 1,516,889 -
2003 30,124,247 1,623,402 -
TOTAL PERCENTAGE
FISCAL PRIMARY OF PERSONAL PER

YEAR GOVERNMENT INCOME CAPITA
2012 $§27.192,549 1% £1.511
201% 527,297,246 1.3% $1,569
2010 526,051,134 T0% 51,460
2009 §27.417.186 7.4% 51,547
2008 527,330,631 16% $1,583
2007 529,239.252 R.5% 51779
2006 530,944,011 9.1% $1.898
2005 531355919 9.7% 52,023
2004 331,833,007 11.6% 52,420
2003 832,861,799 12.0% $2498

{1) Persenal income and populstion daia are aveilable on Table 17.
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City of Mustang, Oklahoma
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DERT OUTSTANDING,
LASTTEN FISCAL YEARS Table 13
General Bonded Debt Outs ianding
General Restricted Nel
Fseal OHligation Judgment Funding Delt Service Bonded
Year Bonds Bonds Total Funds Debt
2012 $3,600,000 - $3.600,000 511,209 53,588,791
2011 240,000 - 240,000 87,011 152,989
2010 480,000 - 480,000 364,139 115,861
2009 720,000 - 720,000 163,29 556.701
2008 960,000 210,000 1,170,000 427,551 742,449
2007 960,000 415,000 1375000 320541 1.045,059
2006 . 620000 620,000 345,221 274,719
2005 175,000 825,000 1,000,000 387,247 612,753
2004 350,000 1,030,000 1,380,000 524,457 755,543
2003 525,000 1,235,000 1,760,000 678,284 1.081,716
Percentage of Ratio of Nel Bonded Bonded Net Bonded
Fisent Actual Taxable Debt to Estimated Debt Per Delt Per
Year Value of Property (2) Assessed Value (2) Population (1) Capita Caplta
012 Y19% 3.15% 17,395 $206.96 $206.3t
2011 0.23% 0.14% 17,395 13.80 &879
2010 0.47% 0.11% 17,260 2781 671
2009 0.73% 0.5% 17,260 41,71 3125
2008 1.33% 0.88% 16,300 7178 45.55
2007 [.74% 1.40% 16,300 B4.36 &1
2006 0.85% 0.40% 15.500 40.00 17.73
2005 1.50%% 0.97% 13,156 76.01 46.58
2004 232% 1.35% 13,156 14,90 5743
2003 321% 2.10% 13.154 133.78 8222

(1} Information obizined from the US Census Bureau and the Oklahoma Department of Commerce.
(2) Property Lex values ame located in Table 6.
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CITY OF MISTANG, OKLAHOMA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
As of June 30, 2012 Tahle 14
Net General Percentage Amount
Bonded Delbt Applicable 1o Applicable to
Entity Quistanding (13 City of Mus{anp City of Mustang
Mustang Public Schools £31,755,000 31.60% $10,669,680
Cily oTMuslang $3,600,000 100.00% $£3,600,000
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $35,355,000 514,269,680
(1) Debt outstanding provided by each enlity.
(2) All debt on this schedule is repaid with properly laxes.
CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
MUSTANG IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
PLEDGED-REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table 15

Bond Indenlure Reguirement (3)

Gross Revenue Net Revenus

Fiscal {including pledged Diract Avallable for Avarage Annual Calculaled Requlred
Year sales tax) Oparaling Expenses (1)  Debl Service Dgbl Sarvice Covaraga Coverage
2012 512,368,125 $2,127 447 $10,241,678 $3,166,263 3.23 1.25
2011 11,534,128 1,970,982 9,563,146 3,178,283 30 1.25
2010 11,573,084 1,700,878 9,872,216 2,772,351 3.56 1.25
2009 11,174,760 2,718,336 8,456,424 2,772,351 3.05 1.25
2008 10,183,341 1,798,686 8,384,655 2,127 413 3ot 1.25
2007 9,719,426 1,617,954 8,101,472 3,302,823 245 1.25
2006 9,625,001 2,180,185 7,464,808 1,955,400 382 1.25
2005 8,563,088 1,424,175 7,138,913 2,743,351 260 1.25
2004 7,967,158 1,281,443 6,695,715 2,743,351 2.44 125
2003 5,784,670 1,491,449 4,303,221 2,743,351 157 1.25

(1) Direct operating axpenses exclude amortizalion, deprecialion and bad debl expenses,
(2) Gross revenues included pledged revanues of waler, sewer and sales tex.

{3} The MIA Revanue Bond Indenlures require a coverage requirement of 1.25 times annually using the average annual debt serwce
owver the life of lhe bond issues.
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"CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Nel assessed valualion
Dabt limit (1)

Applicable bonds outsianding;
2012 General Obligalion Bonds
2007 General Obligalion Bonds
19889 General Obligation Bonds (2)

Tolal Debt Culslanding

Legal debl margin

Nel assessed valualion
Debl limil (1}

Applicable bonds outsianding;

2012 General Obligalion Bonds

2007 General Obligalion Bonds

1889 General Obligalion Bonds {2)
Total Debt Outslanding

Legal debl margin

Table 16
12 20114 2010 2009 2008
$112,921,191 §$106,318,101 $102,391,791 $93,764,110 $84,224,856
11,292,119 10,631,910 10,239,179 9,376,411 8,422,486
3,600,000 - - . .
- 240,000 480,000 720,000 960,000
3,600,000 240,000 480,000 720,000 960,000
27!292§1 12
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$74,784,038 $60,532,513 $63,251,520 $56,120,327 351,458,441
7.478,404 6,953,251 6,325,152 5,612,033 5,145,844
960,000 - - - -
- - 175,000 350,000 525,000
860,000 - 175,000 350,000 525,000

(1} Aricle 10, Seclion 26 of Lhe Oklahoma Censtilution limils the amount of ouslanding general obligation bonded debl of the
municipality for non-utility or non-streel purposes Lo no more than 10% of nel assessed valualion of property.

{2) The 1989 General Obligalion Bonds final malurily was on July 1, 2005.
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS Table 17
Per
Capita
Personal Personal Madian
Year Population (1) Income Income {1) (4) Age (1) (4)
201 18,002 $3681,347 755 $21,554 35.7
2010 17,395 373,859,650 21,554 343
2008 17,843 372,204,980 20,860 34.3
2008 17,727 369,785,220 20,860 34.3
2007 17,260 360,043,600 20,860 343
2006 16,440 342,938,400 20,860 34.3
2005 16,300 340,018,000 20,860 34.3
2004 15,500 323,330,000 20,860 343
2003 13,156 274,434,160 20,860 343
2002 13,156 274,434,160 20,860 343
Education
Level in Years School Unemployment
Year of Schooling (1) (4) (5) Enrollment {2) Rale (3)
2011 90% 9,203 4.9%
2010 90% 8,644 4.6%
2009 90% 8,724 5.8%
2008 90% 8,350 4.8%
2007 90% 8,150 4.2%
2006 90% 7,855 7%
2005 90% 7,048 4.6%
2004 90% 7.461 3.6%
2003 90% 6,714 5.5%
2002 90% 6,569 3.7%

{1) Informalion oblained from the U.5. Census Bureau and the Oklahoma Depariment of Commerce.

{2} Informalion oblained from the Superinlendent's Office lhe Muslang Public Schoal District,
(3} Informalion obtained fram the Oklahoma Employment Security Commission, for the Oklahoma Clly melropehian area.
{(4) The City of Muslang is considered part of the Oklahoma Cily Metropolilan Stastical Area. The mostrecenldala
avallable for the Cily of Muslang relates fo the 1990 and 2000 census. Eslimales from the Oklahoma Deparimenl of
Commerce have been used when available. Dala from1996-1999 relales lo lhe 1990 census. Dala from 2000-2007
relales lo lhe 2000 census.
(5) Represenls lhe percant of lhe populalion 25 yers and older who are high school graduaies or higher.
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND THREE YEARS

Table 18

2011 _l

[ 2012
Percentage of Tolal Percentage of Toal
Employees Rank Cily Employment {1} Employeas Rank City Employmeant {1)
Employar.
Muslang Public Schools 1000 1 27.00% 714 1 19 28%
WakMar Super Canter s 2 B.50% 277 2 7.46%
Tals Pubkshing 20 3 5.94% 189 3 510%
City of Muslang 135 4 3.64% 130 4 A51%
Lowes Homa lmprowvement 112 5 3.02% 107 5 2.89%
Qklahoma National Guard Am - - 0.00% 75 3 202%
Accurate Drilling &7 B 181% 67 7 1.81%
All Amedcan Bank 49 ? 1.22% - - 0.00%
Coldwell Banker Selecl 45 B 1.21% &0 8 1.35%
Lemmys New Homeland 1] 0 0.00% 45 ] 1.21%
Securily Sciullons 40 L] 1.08% 35 10 0.94%
Wilson Opthalimic Corp 40 1¢ 1.08% - - 0.00%
Arbor House Assisled Living - - 0.00% 35 1 0.94%
Tetal 2023 1,724
2010 2009 |
Percemage of Tolal Perceniege of Tolal
Employess Rank Chy Employment (1) Employees Rank City Employment (1)

Employai.
Musiang Public Schoals 900 1 24.30% 994 1 26.84%
Wal-Mart Super Center 277 2 7.48% 5 2 9.31%
Lowe's 1689 3 5.10% 144 3 3.89%
City of Mustang 135 4 3.64% 130 4 a51%
Tele Publighing 107 5 2.80% 120 5 3.24%
iamy's Homeland 50 5} 1.35% 40 6 1.068%
Securly Solutiens 38 7 1.03% 38 T 1.03%
Colowel| Banker 3% B 0.94% 25 B 0.6T%
Wiison Ophthatmic 20 10 0.54% 20 10 054%
Industrial Gesket Mig 28 9 0.76% 28 9 0.76%
Tots! 1,779 1,884

Source: Mustang Chamber of Commerce and the Oklahame Deparimeni of Commarce

{1) Because the Cily of Muslang is bedroom commumty 1o Oklahoma City,

(ha majerily of our residents leave the Cily for RdHime empioymenl.

Oue 1o this <1, statistics relaled lo employment have not been maintamed in Lhe past
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY OF MUSTANG EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table 19

r Fiscal Year

L)
g
L]
k=]
=
-
~
Q
rd
[

009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Functdon/Program

Adminislralion;

Cily Manager 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3
Finance 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Community Development ¢} 5 5 5 7 6 6 ] 6 5
Culiure and Recrealion:
Parks 5 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5
Library 5 5 5 5 3 3 3 3 3 3
Town Center Complex 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2
Public Safety:
Police
Officers 20 19 19 19 19 18 19 19 18 17
Dispaich 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Administration 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Fire
Firehghters 15 15 15 15 15 16 12 11 10 8
Administralion 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Total 75 70 70 70 70 69 65 64 62 58

Note. Infarmation provide by Cily of Muslang Human Resources.
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CITY OF MUBTAMG, ORLAHOMA
DPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table 20
| Foara tas
f1H foik] F-10] Fc] &I e 2003 = =
Eunclon/Program
Palles i7)
Amecte [0 L] 805 258 x? EL R 21 383 287 3
Totsl Cesliora 840 X A.418 258 17 2T 2050 .05 3,004 2.8
Tedal Ingidard Rapors. 2384 1900 1090 1500 1440 1573 1818 13% 12 1147
Fire
bkl ALarmy 1083 1.083 e L] - B a1 T48 [~} [}
Tolsl Alams. by o] 1.958 1897 1,782 1820 LD 1822 1841 1150 206
Anisiwge Redporda Timg § 25 523 348 %0 mm Ad5 15 a2 48
Culwurs and Recruation (2]
Tomr, Cartaw Mambarihipa 4074 2T 2.508 4525 1150 42530 a1 852 ] Ao.ar .88
Park Parais 1.440 1381 13718 1492 1,344 1212 1.3 147 m m
Coniatete Canter Aoom: Rentals 1008 1 167 1848 1.849 1733 1741 1459 1.048 an
Sanicy Conter Lunch Pie pnts. LEF 1128 10 642 [ B 11,143 10845 10184 ©.302 11.018 2|
Acumti; Cantar Aterciancy 34408 M.740 AT 428 A3 a5y kL] 23 pan 2134 44,240 24003 17 0ac
Speria (Adult wwd Youth) Lasgua parie bmnts 32481 3.5 3812 35 248 3. 140 22423 22015 nan AT 1)
Utwary
Agm of By collet ions.
0105 paars oy W% kel A ko % k) % % 1%
040 10 ywary 41y % % % P 1% 8% 15% 15% %
111025 years. ire % Fro % % % 30% W% 15% 1%
26 of Mot yeary % "% 1% n% e 15% 15% 15% 15% 1%
‘Valumes in ¢ ollec Lon 58415 587 48 002 £3.717 40470 .00 T 34783 3 408 0345
kiordsl program 7 3 as4 328 m 08 b Fir L] 203
il stsaoien o 1513 14020 18 484 14903 4072 1 W0 10l LERE i enr
Total volumes bormouwsd 215081 218.480 194 472 175 W7 84008 1B).RT 148 455 128,008 120 442 5224
Mambanthie R0W 2 240 28104 2 008 9735 2 BT 17 903 e 7m 1Es
Wakr
Narw Cotirme sy 82 122 [ 14 m m H. 257 Fe ] a
Aaragm ey ¢OTRITRUDN (0 Hllbon gattord per daly) L] 153 158 15 15 1% 153 15 . 14
Waslwwatar
Anmrmgn ol Bow i g 135 200 im 1807 118 101 118 14 112 101
Sireals
Cautt yorcy of slreal vl twpimead 108 7 W s 188 EER ] 11128 (0] ) 1))
Cubec owl of pralhcian. pusi; e 420) k) 473 541 wrs 1152 w7 e 59 i
Community Developimem
Caamrrnicial Cormiructicon Permets H 2 1 [] ] [E] n n n L]
Commarcel o inue e col 42 307 000 700,000 00, 00 4 437,000 410 200 K0 o000 12 IN1000 13 808 000 SAA000  §13 508 308
Fenidential Cone b o Paemits 48 L [ 3] 143 1 201 a8 % 72
Rt cdaniusl ¢ oratn bon coel HIB02TIE 65 K4 0TS Mmoo 10,051 418 £22, 930 400 138 DET B2 F43 B3 592 30,958 5a T3 ThH A2 444 B35
Stormater e
CanaInIE1nn SIgRION K pa 0rg. L2 17 » % 50 s 2 1] an n
Stamrwtar pemds miuesd ) [] 14 17 150 218 ] m 0y ™
DeLipelion v Sudinds s
Occupalion: b amen 57 & Son L 5 k-] 7 Asa 1 w5
Busims bcomar 3% 350 341 anr m EAFS 9 n 3 241

1) Tan yoary of s wat P08 sullabin bud will bm wccumaeled our bme. Signticent smaun! of opefatng Slattiss wars Ky whim
tha oo was iom o of Sy Hall i g Siorm s e oding deatped  Recorde atand n the Basemen: wers 5 tolat ons

12) IndorrmUen 11 e ied upon o Cdlericlar year
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA
CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCITON/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Table 21

| | Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

[a%]
[=]
jury
[ 8]
A
g
-y
2
[=]
g

Function/Program

Public Safaty
Police Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire Stallans 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Streels
Sireel {miles) 85.03 B5.03 85.03 85.03 85.03 84.28 12.88 8.5 5.85 4.69
Traffic Signals ] 8 ] 8 7 7 7 7 7 7

Parks and Racreation

Acreage 198.94 198.94 19894  198.94 212 212 214 214 214 214
Playgrounds ' 8 8 8 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Baseball/sofiball diamonds 12 12 12 12 15 15 15 15 15 15
Soccer/football fields 4 4 4 4 " 11 11 11 1 -
Walking Trails (miles) 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 2 2 2 2 2 2
Waler
Waler mains (miles} 121.03 121.03  121.03  120.28 120,28  119.61 1772 11507 108.36 104.9
Fire hydranis B38 809 809 804 804 797 725 712 688 681
Slorage capacily {millions of gallons) 3.35 3.35 3.35 3.35 3.35 3.35 335 3.35 3.36 3.35
Water wells 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Booster Stations 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2
Wastewater
Sanilary sewer linas {miles) 85.7 85.7 85.7 85.7 85.7 B3.3 81.54 77.14 70.32 65.16
Trealmenl capacily (millions of gallons per day) 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
Lift stalions 6 6 6 6 [ & 6 & 5 4

Source: Inlemal clly documenis.
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& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the
City of Mustang, Oklahoma

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Mustang, Oklahoma (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 14, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
as items 12-1and 12-2.

309 N. Bryant Ave. + Edmond, OK 73034 « 405.348.0615 + Fax-405.348.0931 « www.jmacpas.com
Member of AICPA and OSCPA




The City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings. We did not audit the City's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, the City Council, management,

and federal awarding agencies and pass

-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used

by anyone other than these specified parties.

(Z/\zgaée £ | d‘m"’*‘:/&(

Edmond, Oklahc')ma
December 14, 2012
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CITY OF MUSTANG, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Finding 12-1; Deposits with Financial Institutions

Criteria: Oklahoma state statutes require that all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial
institutions must be secured by the financial institution with acceptable collateral.

Condition: As of June 30, 2012, deposits totaling approximately $647,000 were not insured or
collateralized as required by state law.

Cause: Near year end, the City received a large deposit from the issuance of debt. It is our understanding
that efforts were made by City personnel to ensure that these proceeds would be collateralized by the
financial institution prior to the actual deposit. However, that collateralization did not occur and the City
was temporarily exposed to custodial risk.

Effect: Because of the failure to adequately collateralize its deposits, the City was exposed to potential
losses resulting from custodial credit risk up to $647,000 as of June 30, 2012.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City have procedures in place to ensure that all applicable
deposits are adequately insured or collateralized throughout the year.

City's Response: Under new financial management, internal controls have been put in place to ensure
that all deposits are secured acceptable collateral.



Finding 12-2 Account Reconciliations

Criteria: The City should establish and monitor appropriate controls to ensure timely and accurate
reporting of the City’s activities throughout the year.

Condition: During the year ended June 30, 2012, the City had not performed timely reconciliations on its
accounts.

Cause: During the year, the City experienced turnover in its key accounting positions. This turnover was
caused, in large part, due to the City seeking to improve its accounting and reporting processes through
changes in personnel.

Effect: Outside consultants were brought in by the City near and subsequent to year end to aid in the
reconciliation and reporting processes, and to assist in various pre-audit matters. However, key accounts
were not reconciled throughout the year which can lead to increased exposure to errors or fraud not being
detected in a timely manner.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City establish and monitor its control procedures to ensure
timely accounting and reporting throughout the period. ;

City’s Response: Under new financial management, the City is performing all reconciliations on its
accounts in a timely manner.



